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OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau) is a wholly owned-subsidiary
of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong). Previously known as
Banco Weng Hang, S.A., OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau) was
established in 1941 and has over 500 employees.

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong), the former Wing Hang Bank,
Limited became a wholly-owned subsidiary of OCBC Bank on 15 October
2014. OCBC Bank is the longest established Singapore bank, formed
in 1932 from the merger of three local banks, the oldest of which was
founded in 1912. It is now the second largest financial services group in
Southeast Asia by assets and one of the world’s most highly-rated banks,
with an Aa1l rating from Moody's. Recognised for its financial strength
and stability, OCBC Bank is consistently ranked among the World’s Top
50 Safest Banks by Global Finance and has been named Best Managed
Bank in Singapore by The Asian Banker. OCBC Bank’s key markets are
Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia and Greater China. It has 590 branches
and representative offices in 18 countries and regions. OCBC Bank’s
private banking services are provided by its wholly-owned subsidiary Bank
of Singapore, which operates on a unique open-architecture product
platform to source for the best-in-class products to meet its clients’ goals.
OCBC Bank’s insurance subsidiary, Great Eastern Holdings, is the oldest
and most established life insurance group in Singapore and Malaysia. Its
asset management subsidiary, Lion Global Investors, is one of the largest
private sector asset management companies in Southeast Asia.

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Hong Kong) together with its subsidiaries
and affiliated companies, offers a comprehensive range of commercial
banking products and services and other financial services such as
consumer financing, share brokerage and insurance, among others. It has
more than 100 branches and offices in Hong Kong, China and Macau,
including the 12 branches operated by OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
(Macau).

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited (Macau), as part of the OCBC group of
companies, offers customers an augmented banking network, global
market access and an extensive range of products and services for
personal and business financial needs.



20175 RIRMGH

2017 Results in Brief

LREFIRTF ol 3R (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
o CrR)
Increase/
(Decrease)
2FEHEE FOR THE YEAR 2017 2016 %
KRR 18w A Profit after taxation 413,706 365,492 13.2%
=N Dividends - 300,000 (100.0%)
RELTFHE AT YEAR END 2017 2016 %
AR R 425 Total equity 4,070,793 3,518,244 15.7%
B Total deposits 28,966,815 27,789,727 4.2%
BEEX® Advances to customers 21,478,491 21,102,568 1.8%
BB E Total assets 33,899,343 31,892,612 6.3%
[ RATIO % %
P AN BRI A B = Cost to income ratio 45.1 45.9
B E R R R Return on average assets 1.3 1.1
EHIREBE S EFHE Return on average shareholders' funds 10.9 10.2
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Five Year Financial Summary

F TR MOP thousand 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
RRES Shareholders' fund 2,572,192 3,077,641 3,409,479 3,518,244 4,070,793
BIER Total deposits 26,854,154 30,286,129 28,783,824 27,789,727 28,966,815
EEEX Advances to customers 19,501,200 21,950,541 22,265,189 21,102,568 21,478,491
MEE Total assets 31,471,040 35,587,868 32,805,878 31,892,612 33,899,343
L UN Operating income 638,308 732,503 777,009 766,040 758,520
EESH Operating expenses (285,023) (324,290) (336,875) (351,681) (341,807)
B 7t 15 s ) Profit after taxation 356,296 332,500 377,082 365,492 413,706
A% =, Dividends (48,000) (120,000) - (300,000) -
b= Ratio 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
BfFtt % Loan to deposit ratio 72.6 72.5 77.4 76.0 74.1
BEARFE R E Capital adequacy ratio * 12.8 12.5 13.7 15.2 15.9
DN S N S Cost to income ratio 447 443 43.4 45.9 45.1
FEHBERRE Return on average assets 1.2 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.3
FHERESOZRE  Return on average

shareholders' funds 15.2 11.8 11.6 10.2 10.9

© RAPISMERBZ ERMEE
Calculated in accordance with the requirements set out by the Autoridade Monetaria de Macau.
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Net Profit / Return on Average Shareholders’ Fund

EEF SIS Eip%
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BEFERFX

Loan and Advances to Customers / Deposits

B BRI

In MOP million
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Loan and Advances to Customers Deposits
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Bank Information
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Shareholders
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited
Incorporated in Hong Kong

Board of Directors
Chairman
Mr NA Wu Beng

Directors

Ms KNG Hwee Tin

Mr Frank John WANG

Mr LEE Tak Lim

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley

Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen
Mr CHAN Han Wo

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael
Mr CHEONG Kin Hong

Supervisory Council
Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah

Ms TAM Ha Kei Abby

General Meeting Committee
Mr CHEONG Kin Hong

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael

Mr Frank John WANG
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Chairman’s Statement
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Mr. NA Wu Beng

Chairman

Macau’s economy has turned around in 2017 after two years of GDP
contraction. Boosted by strong growth in the gaming sector, real GDP
in Macau grew by 9.1 percent in 2017. In the midst of an economic
recovery, the Bank has achieved satisfactory results with profit after tax
reaching MOP414 million. Growth was seen in both customer loans and
deposits. The Bank’s net interest margin improved as a result of effective
asset and liability management. Loan-to-deposit ratio was maintained at
a healthy level of 74.1 percent. With a prudent underwriting policy, the
Bank maintained excellent asset quality. As of year-end of 2017, the non-
performing loan ratio was at an industry leading low level of 0.05 percent.

While fee income was buoyed by the rise in brokerage fees from an active
stock market, the Bank also recorded satisfactory results in other fee
income businesses. One of the high growth areas is wealth management
as the Bank capitalized on the expanded product range and service
expertise of the OCBC Group in providing top-notch wealth management
and insurance products to our customers.

The Bank’s net profit increased by 13.2 percent to MOP414 million as
compared to MOP365 million in 2016. Shareholders’ funds amounted
to MOP4,071 million, an increase of 15.7 percent as compared to 2016.
Return on average shareholders’ funds was 10.9 percent. The capital
adequacy ratio of the Bank at the end of 2017 was maintained at a healthy
ratio of 15.9 percent.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2017 7
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Chairman’s Statement
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Looking ahead, we expect increased business opportunities in Macau as
well as in the Greater Bay area where OCBC Group has a strong network
presence. With a healthy balance sheet and strong asset quality, we are
well positioned to take advantage of the strategic opportunities ahead of
us. With the continued support from our customers, the dedication of our
colleagues, and strong backing from the OCBC Group, we are confident of
maintaining a competitive and successful franchise in the market.

Finally, I would like to thank our customers for their confidence and
unwavering support. | would like to also thank our colleagues for
upholding a high standard of customer service and for delivering strong
financial performance in 2017.

NA Wu Beng
Chairman

23 March 2018
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Report of the Supervisory Council
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According to the law and OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited's (the “Bank”)
Article of Association, the Supervisory Council (“We") should monitor
the Bank’s operation and management, and express an opinion on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
proposal of profit distribution which are submitted by the Board of
Directors.

We have carried out the necessary supervision, analyzed the operation
and management of the Bank for year 2017, and reviewed the Board of
Directors’ report for year 2017 and the auditor’s report issued by KPMG
on 23 March 2018 for these financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Bank.

Based on the results of the reviews above, we are in the opinion that the
these financial statements, proposal of profit distribution and reports
submitted by the Board of Directors should be approved in the Annual
General Meeting.

President of Supervisory Council
TSE Hau Yin Aloysius

23 March 2018
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Corporate Governance Report
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Bank is a wholly-owned subsidiary of OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited,
Hong Kong (“OWH"), which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited (“OCBC"). OWH has
complied with Supervisory Policy Manual on Corporate Governance of
Locally Incorporated Authorized Institutions issued by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority. The Bank has also applied the internal control
objectives, principles and components as set out in “The Internal Control
Guidelines for the Authorised Credit Institutions” issued by the Monetary
Authority of Macau throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

Board of Directors

Throughout the year, the Board maintained a stable composition that
provided strong and consistent leadership conducive to making and
implementing decisions effectively and appropriately. Each Director
possesses skills and experiences appropriate to the business of the Bank.
The Board also includes personnel with the appropriate accounting and
other expertise necessary for the smooth running of the Bank. During
the year, all directors of the Bank received regular briefings on economic
updates, the Bank’s business, operations, risk management and corporate
governance matters as well as new rules and regulations and changes to
rules and regulations applicable to the Bank.

Members of the Board are as follows:

Mr NA Wu Beng (Non-Executive Chairman)

Mr CHEONG Kin Hong (Director & General Manager)

Mr CHAN Han Wo Herbert (Director & Deputy General Manager)
Ms KNG Hwee Tin (Non-Executive Director)

Mr Frank John WANG (Non-Executive Director)

Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen (Non-Executive Director)

Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley (Non-Executive Director)

Mr FUNG Yuk Sing Michael (Non-Executive Director)

Mr LEE Tak Lim (Non-Executive Director)

The following directors are senior executives of OWH:

Mr NA Wu Beng, Chief Executive, Mr Frank John WANG, Deputy Chief
Executive, Mr WONG Chun Kau Stephen, Senior Deputy General Manager
and Mr YUEN Sui Chi Stanley, Group Executive.

All Directors have no relationship with each other.

During the year, five board meetings were held. The 2017 Annual General
Meeting will be held on 28 March 2018.
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Supervisory Council

The Supervisory Council of the Bank has clear terms of reference which are
regularly reviewed (the latest version was approved by the Shareholders’
Annual General Meeting on 29 March 2017). Its principal functions are
to independently review and monitor the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management system of
the Bank; oversee the audit process; and perform all other duties and
obligations mentioned in the law and in the articles of association of the
Bank. The Supervisory Council reviews the audit coverage and approves
the internal audit plan, reviews the work, findings and recommendations
of the internal auditors. The Supervisory Council also discusses issues
raised by the external auditors and the regulators, and ensures that
recommendations are properly implemented.

The Supervisory Council satisfies the requirement stipulated in the Macau
Commercial Code that one of its members is a Registered Auditor in
Macau. Members of the Supervisory Council are as follows:

Mr TSE Hau Yin Aloysius (President)
Mr LEUNG Chiu Wah Stephen (Supervisor)
Ms TAM Ha Kei Abby (Supervisor)

Mr. TSE Hau Yin Aloysius is a Registered Auditor in Macau, a fellow of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and a former
president and member of the Audit Committee of the HKICPA. Mr. LEUNG
Chiu Wah Stephen is Chief Operations Officer of OWH, and Ms. TAM Ha
Kei Abby is Head of Compliance of OWH.

Mr. TSE Hau Yin Aloysius is an Independent Non-Executive Director,
Chairman of the Audit Committee and member of the Risk Management

Committee of OWH.

Four meetings were held in 2017.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2017 11
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Corporate Strategy and Business Model

The Bank is a leading financial service provider in Macau. We aim to be
the preferred choice of our customers for financial services and to increase
shareholders’ value by maintaining a consistent growth in return on
equity.

To be successful, we need to be focused and responsive as business
environments are challenging and ever changing. The Bank’s strategic
objective is to continue to strengthen both business and operational
aspects of the Bank to ensure satisfactory returns to shareholders and to
further improve the competitiveness of the Bank.

Remuneration Committee

The Bank follows the principle of the remuneration policy of OWH. The
Board has mandated a committee comprising Mr NA Wu Beng, Mr Frank
John WANG, and Ms KNG Hwee Tin to determine the Bank’s remuneration
policy and structure for all Executive Directors and senior management of
the Bank, by reference to corporate goals and objectives as determined
by the Board from time to time. In determining the remuneration policy,
the Committee takes into account the Bank’s business objectives, human
resources strategy, short-term and long-term performance, business and
economic conditions, and market practices in order to retain staff with
relevant expertise for the Bank’s long-term success.

The mandate also empowers the Committee to appoint members of senior
management and recommend to the Shareholders the appointment of
Directors.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has established the following committees to oversee the day-
to-day operations of the Bank. All committees have specific terms of
reference in order to ensure that they discharge their functions properly
and to report back to the Board, where appropriate, their decisions and
recommendations. Information on these committees is set out below:

Management Committee

The Management Committee meets regularly to review and approve
all major matters relating to the strategy and planning, operations,
management and performance of the Bank. It is granted powers and
authorities necessary for conducting and managing the Bank’s normal
banking and related activities.
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Members of the Management Committee are as follows:

—  Director;

— General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
— Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;
—  Head of Retail Banking Division;

— Head of Corporate Banking Division;

— Head of Operations Division; and

— Head of Self-Service Banking Division.

Credit Committee

The Credit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to formulate,
approve and implement loan policies, guidelines and credit practices of
the Bank. It is also responsible for the implementation and maintenance
of the Bank’s credit risk management framework. It also participates in
evaluating large credit applications and making credit decisions.

Members of the Credit Committee are as follows:

— General Manager;

— Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;

— Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;

— Head of Corporate Banking Division; and

— Head of Credit and Risk Management Department.

Asset and Liability Management Committee

The Asset and Liability Management Committee is responsible for
the implementation and maintenance of the overall risk management
framework relating to balance sheet structure, market risk, trading,
funding and liquidity risk management of the Bank. It recommends policy
and guidelines to the Board for approval.

Members of the Asset and Liability Management Committee are as
follows:

—  General Manager;

— Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
—  Head of Treasury Department; and

— Head of Financial Management Department.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2017 13
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee provides a structured, cohesive and
forward-looking mechanism to identify, measure, monitor and control the
various type of risks across the entire spectrum of the Bank's activities.
While each of these risks is managed by the division/department with
specialized knowledge and expertise in that area, the Risk Management
Committee is assigned to oversee the overall assessment and management
of these risks. The Risk Management Committee aims to ensure that each
level of risks is within the parameters set by the Board and that the risk
management process meets the standards required by the AMCM.

Members of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:

—  General Manager;

— Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;

—  Head of Operations Division;

— Head of Self-Service Banking Division;

— Head of Credit and Risk Management Department;
— Head of Legal and Compliance Department;

— Head of Financial Management Department; and
— Head of Information Technology Department.

Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Committee
The Anti-Money Laundering (“AML") and Counter-Terrorist Financing
("CFT") Committee is formed to oversee the functioning and effectiveness
of AML/CFT control measures so that all AML/CFT cases or issues are
properly monitored and addressed in a timely manner. It meets regularly
to discuss and approve actions and initiatives to mitigate risks arising from
AML/AFT matters and ensures proper control measures are in place to
meet the AML/CFT statutory and regulatory requirements.

Members of the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing
Committee are as follows:

—  General Manager;

—  Deputy General Manager;

— Head of Financial & Risk Management Division;
— Head of Consumer Credit & Finance Division;

— Head of Retail Banking Division;

— Head of Corporate Banking Division;

— Head of Operations Division;

— Head of Branch Operation & Planning Department;
—  Head of Human Resources Department;

—  Head of Central Control Department;

— Head of Legal and Compliance Department; and
- Head of Internal Audit Department.
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Internal Controls
The Directors are responsible for internal controls of the Bank and for
reviewing its effectiveness.

Procedures are designed to safeguard assets against unauthorized use or
disposition; maintain proper accounting records; and ensure the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for publication.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify, control and report on
major risks the Bank faces. Risk management policies and major risk
control limits are approved by the Board.

Business and functional units are responsible for the assessment of
risks arising under their areas of responsibility and the management
of such risks in accordance with the Bank’s risk management policies
and procedures. The relevant risk management reports are submitted
to the Management Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee, Risk Management Committee and the Board for
monitoring the respective risks.

More detailed discussions on the policies and procedures for management
of major risks the Bank faces, including credit, market, liquidity and
operational risks as well as capital management, are included in note 23 to
the financial statements.

Internal audit plays an important role in the Bank’s internal control
framework. It monitors the effectiveness of internal control procedures
and compliance with policies and standards across all business and
operational units. Senior management is required to provide the internal
audit function with written confirmation that it has acted fully on all
recommendations made by external auditors and regulatory authorities.
The internal audit function also advises senior management on operational
efficiency and other risk management issues. The work of the internal
audit function focuses on areas of greatest risk to the Bank as determined
by risk assessment. The Chief Internal Auditor reports to the General
Manager and President of the Supervisory Council. Audit reports are
submitted to the Board and Audit Committee of OWH for review.

Macau, 23 March 2018
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

ETRARBITRACEE Our Staff is Our Greatest Asset

KT MEREIEE  UHBRHFEE - We always focus on nurturing our employees to be all-round performers.
I BRI ARAE - (FMfE— S EEE D Therefore, we arrange regular training courses for employees to equip
BRIt N BT E 2 IRES - themselves to best serve the Bank and customers.

BN SE) TEEAJER & - WEHASE  We encourage “Work-Life Balance” and organize various recreational
TRERASRPESTERREZE o activities for staff and their families.

RIP/A B RPFEERITRIE RETESRRRELES
Provided training course to Managerial staff on leadership skill Organized recreational activities during Staff Caring Weeks

BFEREIRARARPIRT By ERLZA
Organized annual vacation tour for our staff and their families Organized staff BBQ party

16 E/KFRITVROBELT « 20175 £ K



ELEE Volunteer Service

20174  322Mf% TRRIGB B EL M T27E%E  In 2017, 322 members of our Volunteer Service Team devoted a total
T)E8) » EARFEIFECET, 113/ « TERBEYE of 1,113 community service hours in 27 CSR activities. We focused our
SRERE SLOERMS R ABEWEE - %  efforts in helping children and youngsters, 18,446 beneficiaries were

BAHEE18,446 A © engaged in our support and care activities.
RIS S oo o = =
RUE :

S2MBLABRITBEZED
Participated in the Orbis Action for Sight charity event

2NAmeBET
Participated in the Walk for a Million charity event

ReTZRERAKLFENRE
Visited families affected by Typhoon Hato

RiEBREFLRE

Visited elderly homes

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2017 17
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG
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Independent auditor’s report to the directors of
Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A.
(Incorporated in Macau with limited liability)

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Banco OCBC
Weng Hang, S.A. (“the Bank”) set out on pages 20 to 90, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, the income statement, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the
requirements as set out in the Macau Financial System Act (Decree-
Law No. 32/93/M) and the Financial Reporting Standards issued
under Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region (“Macau SAR"). This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining appropriate internal control
relevant to the preparation and the presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances; and
maintaining adequate and accurate accounting records.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. The report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards
and Technical Standards of Auditing issued by the Macau SAR. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s professional judgement,
including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of, in all
material respects, the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31 December 2017
and of its profits and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the requirements set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93M and the Financial
Reporting Standards of the Macau SAR.

This report is intended solely for filing with the Autoridade Monetaria de
Macau.

leong Lai Kun, Registered Auditor

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

24th Floor, B & C
Bank of China Building
Avenida Doutor Mario Soares

Macau

23 March 2018

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2017 19



ot R

Income Statement

BE2017F12H31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
(LABPTBEF Tz 5)7T) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
Bt sE
Note 2017 2016
FEWA Interest income 4(a) 735,566 784,574
FEZH Interest expense 4(b) (164,898) (212,161)
= IS PN Net interest income 570,668 572,413
FRTWA Net fees and commission income 4(c) 152,320 142,240
BEEBERR eI AY Net (losses)/gains from financial
F(BK) M instruments held for trading (422) 5,784
E A Other income 4(d) 35,954 45,603
EERA Operating income 758,520 766,040
e Operating expenses 4(e) (341,807) (351,681)
HBREFRERE X Operating profit before impairment
REEATE S E T losses and allowances charged on
loans and advances 416,713 414,359
BRZMEEERR Impairment losses and allowances charged
R on loans and advances 4(f) (6,481) (1,514)
R A Operating profit 410,232 412,845
HESFKETEEEFEX Net losses on disposal of tangible
fixed assets (208) (45)
HEAHEESMEE 2/ FlE Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets 5 60,618 326
BR 5% B 7 A Profit before taxation 470,642 413,126
FRIE Taxation 6(a) (56,936) (47,634)
BRFi & & A Profit after taxation 413,706 365,492
RERMFEHEER(2ER ) Effects of additional impairment
FROEMERREEE 2L allowances for loans in accordance
with Autoridade Monetaria de
Macau (“AMCM") rules
R 251 1% Ve A Profit after taxation 413,706 365,492
RIESE BIEGEINZBRE% Additional impairment allowances in 18(b)
BB accordance with AMCM rules, net of tax  (v) (2,454) (10,152)
BESERKHTE2HREER Profit after taxation under AMCM rules 411,252 355,340

F24REFI0H 2B AM B BRKR A — B

(7

20 E/KFRITVROBRBRLF « 20175 FH

The notes on pages 24 to 90 form part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet

#2017412 /4318 At 31 December 2017
(LBPTBEF Tl 5)7T) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
k5
Note 2017 2016
aE ASSETS
Be M FERIRITRE - Cash and balances with banks, central banks

FRRERTT R E & B SROE and other financial institutions 9 1,153,404 1,159,051
EEES Trade bills 10 4,782 11,687
BEERBERE Trading assets 11 14,491 26,264
ZEERREMIRTE Advances to customers and other accounts 12 21,632,950 21,308,776
EREBER AT R Amounts due from immediate holding 22(b)

EESIEINGIE S company and fellow subsidiaries (ii) 4,879,983 4,673,231
AHHESREE Available-for-sale financial assets 14 5,531,553 4,057,982
BRETEEE Tangible fixed assets 15 682,180 655,621
HEE Total assets 33,899,343 31,892,612
BRREZEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RITRAIZE ~ PRIRITR Deposits and balances of banks, central

Hih o mEETER banks and other financial institutions 3,978 2,115
EPER - EH - #FER Current, fixed, savings and

Hihfzm® other deposits of customers 28,966,815 27,789,727
EERZAE Trading liabilities 16 9,326 28,150
JFE <t AN HA RS 18 Current tax payable 6(c) 56,862 49,809
BEHIBEAE Deferred tax liabilities 6(d) 124,947 106,668
Hih B & Other liabilities 17 357,259 359,265
ENEBZERAR K Amounts due to immediate holding 22(b)

EEY D= NGIE/ S company and fellow subsidiaries (ii) 309,363 38,634
wa® veEl el RHEREE) AR ITNO60
RE 2 Share capital 18(a) 120,000 120,000
& Reserves 3,950,793 3,398,244
BRBaBE welleslidy ClUARE) SIS
BRREEREE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 33,899,343 31,892,612

REEQIEREENR2018F3A23A%E

EFIS

F24BEFEI0H 2 B A B KA — &8

1/\ ®

2018

Na Wu Beng
Cheong Kin Hong

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March

The notes on pages 24 to 90 form part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

EHZE2017F12A31HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
(LABPTBEF Tz 5)7T) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
217
R b
sk i -k EERfE L Efifite EERE BaRt hRREREE
Bank
premises  Investment
Share General legal  revaluation  revaluation  Regulatory Unappropriated Total
Note capital reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
WITE1B1R LS At 1 January 2017 120,000 184,200 120,000 413,725 188,039 180,473 2,311,807 3,518,244
BRE Dividends paid 8(b) - - - - - = = -
BARHEL Appropriation to requlatory
EEREDR reserve net of tax 18(0)v) - - - - - 2454 (2.454) -
BARREL Surplus on revaluation of
BALERRS bank premises net of tax - - - 34,274 - - - 34,274
BHRREZ Fair value changes of available-
THEESHAR for-sale financia
AFEEZED assets net of tax - - - - 103,699 - - 103,699
FOMERZ Depreciation in relation to
BENE revaluation of bank premises - - - (6377) - - 7,241 870
ER 2R Profit for the year 5 - - - - - 413,106 413,706
WI7E12831RE8 At 31 December 2017 120,000 184,200 120,000 441,622 291,738 182,921 2,730,306 4,070,193
2016
St &8
s A —REE TEERE Eftff BlhRE EERE BYREE  BRERLE
Bank
premises Investment
Share General Legal revaluation  revaluation Regulatory  Unappropriated Total
Note capital reserve resrve reserve reserve Teserve profits equity
016515158 At 1 January 2016 120,000 184,200 120,000 443512 129,233 170,321 2240213 3,409.479
EkS Dividends paid 8(b) - - - - - - (300,000) (300,000)
BAREZ Appropriation to requlatory
EEREER reserve net of tax 18(b)(v) - - - - - 10,152 (10,152) -
BAREZ Deficit on revaluation of
FOMERER bank premises net of tax - - - (15,533) - - = (15,533)
BHR#EL Fair value changes of available-
TEEESHEE for-sale financial
ATEEZEY assets net of tax - - - - 58,806 - = 58,806
RTIERZ Depreciation in relation to
EnE revaluation of bank premises - - - (14,254) - s 14,254 =
ERzEH Profit for the year - - - - - - 365,492 365,492
0165128318 E4 At 31 December 2016 120,000 184,200 120,000 43,725 188,039 180473 2,311,807 3,518,244

F24BEFEI0H 2 B A B KA — &8

e

22 EEXSHOTRGERAR . 2017FFR

The notes on pages 24 to 90 form part of these financial statements.
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Cash Flow Statement

BE2017F12H31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2017
(LABPTBEF Tz 5)7T) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas)
B sE
Note 2017 2016
HEETEMEEZ Net cash generated from
ﬁﬁgﬁ operating activities 21() 672,104 598,172
REEE Investing activities
BABFEEEEE Purchase of tangible fixed assets (16,718) (9,732)
HEEFETEEFSZ Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets 32 76
BARMHEESRHEE Purchase of available-for-sale
financial assets (6,043,832) (3,070,252)
HEREOAHIEES R EERS Proceeds from sales and redemption of
available-for-sale financial assets 3,882,830 1,458,086
= U A% B Dividends received 4,848 5,253
BARETBMERAZRESFE Net cash used in investing activities (2,172,840) (1,616,569)
mMEEH Financing activity
TR B Dividends paid 8(b) = (300,000)
EAMAZRBMEA2RLFHE  Netcash usedin financing activity - s (300,000)_
ReREFAESEHRD Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents (1,500,736) (1,318,397)
BERZERARELEEMIB1848 Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 5,891,959 7,210,356
HEeRZERABELEER Cash and cash equivalents
12310 &8k at 31 December 21(b) 4,391,223 5,891,959
REHKLEBTHHESRBAIE .  Cash flows from operating activities
include:
2 Y B Interest received 738,016 790,742
BB Interest paid 160,820 234,267

E24AEFE908 Z M B A 15 MK H) — &

The notes on pages 24 to 90 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

1 Reporting entity
Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. (“the Bank”) was incorporated in
Macau on 2 September 1963. The Bank is engaged in commercial

banking and related financial services. The Bank has its registered
office and principal place of business at 241 Avenida de Almeida
Ribeiro, Macau.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Principal accounting policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements as set out in Decree-Law No. 32/93/M
and the Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”) issued under
Administrative Regulation No. 25/2005 of the Macau Special
Administrative Region (“Macau SAR").

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the
Bank is set out below.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board
of Directors on 23 March 2018.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that financial
instruments classified as trading, designated at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale are stated at their fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out in note 2(e).

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Macau Patacas,
which is the Bank’s functional currency. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise
indicated.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
MFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(d) Use of estimates and judgements (continued)

(e)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised

in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects

only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of MFRSs

that have significant effect on the financial statements and major

sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.

Financial instruments

(0

Initial recognition

The Bank classifies its financial instruments into different
categories at inception, depending on the purpose for which
the assets were acquired or the liabilities were incurred.
The categories are: fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and other
financial liabilities.

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value,
which normally will be equal to the transaction price plus,
in case of a financial asset or financial liability not held
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs on
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed immediately.

The Bank recognises financial assets and financial liabilities
on the date it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Purchase or sale of financial assets and
financial liabilities is recognised using settlement date
accounting basis. Any gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recorded.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification

Fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading, and those designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition, but
exclude those investments in equity instruments that do
not have a quoted market price and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured.

Trading financial instruments are financial assets or
financial liabilities which are acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of trading, or are part of
a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.
Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for as trading instruments.

The Bank has the option to designate financial
instruments at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition when:

—  the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and
reported internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise;

— the asset or liability contains an embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required under the
contract; or

— the separation of the embedded derivatives from
the financial instrument is not prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities under this
category are carried at fair value. Changes in the fair
value are included in the income statement in the
period in which they arise. Upon disposal or repurchase,
the difference between the net sale proceeds or net
payment and the carrying value is included in the income
statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market, other than (1) those that the Bank
intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which
will be classified as held for trading; (2) those that the
Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or
(3) those where the Bank may not recover substantially
all of its initial investment, other than because of credit
deterioration, which will be classified as available-for-
sale. Loans and receivables mainly comprise loans and
advances to customers and bank, and placements with
banks, central banks and other financial institutions.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if
any (note 2(j)).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale
or are not classified in any of the other two categories
above. They include financial assets intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time, but which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in the
market environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair
value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes
in the fair value are not recognised in the income
statement and are accumulated separately in equity,
except for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised in the income statement.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Classification (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)
Investments in equity securities that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be measured reliably, and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity securities are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any (note 2(j)). Interest income
from debt securities calculated using the effective
interest method and dividend income from equity
securities are recognised in the income statement in
accordance with the policies set out in notes 2(o)(i) and
2(o)(iii) respectively.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold,
gains or losses on disposal include the difference
between the net sale proceeds and the carrying value,
and the accumulated fair value adjustments which are
released from the revaluation reserve.

Other financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, other than trading liabilities and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss, are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

(iii) Fair value measurement principles
The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
guoted market prices at the reporting date without any
deduction for estimated future selling costs. Financial assets
are priced at current bid prices, while financial liabilities are

priced at current ask prices.

If there is no publicly available latest trade price nor a quoted
market price on a recognised stock exchange or a price
from a broker/dealer for non-exchange-traded financial
instruments, or if the market for it is not active, the fair value

of the instrument is estimated using valuation techniques
that provide a reliable estimate of prices which could be
obtained in actual market transactions.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continued)
(iii) Fair value measurement principles (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated
future cash flows are based on management'’s best estimates
and the discount rate used is a market rate at the reporting
date applicable for an instrument with similar terms and
conditions. Where other pricing models are used, inputs are
based on market data at the reporting date.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual rights
to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
where the financial asset together with substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership, have been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

The Bank uses the first-in, first-out method to determine
realised gains or losses to be recognised in profit and loss on
derecognition.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid
(combined) instrument that includes both the derivative
and a host contract with the effect that some of the cash
flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to
a stand-alone derivative. The embedded derivatives are
separated from the host contract and accounted for as a
derivative when (1) the economic characteristics and risks of
the embedded derivative are not closely related to the host
contract; and (2) the hybrid (combined) instrument is not
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

When the embedded derivative is separated, the host
contract is accounted for in accordance with note (ii) above.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(f) Hedging
The Bank has no financial instruments which qualify for hedge

accounting.

(g) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

0]

(i)

Bank premises that are held for the Bank’s administrative
use are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued
amount, being their fair values at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity by professional
qualified valuers to ensure that the carrying amount does
not differ materially from that which would be determined
using fair values at the reporting date. Changes arising on
the revaluation are generally dealt with in equity and are
accumulated in the Bank premises revaluation reserve. The
only exceptions are as follows:

— when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged to
the income statement to the extent that it exceeds the
amount held in the reserve in respect of that same asset
immediately prior to the revaluation; and

— when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be credited
to the income statement to the extent that a deficit on
revaluation in respect of that same asset had previously
been charged to the income statement.

Bank premises that are not held for the Bank’s administrative
use and other tangible fixed assets are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any (note 2())).

Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of tangible
fixed assets that has already been recognised is added
to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will
flow to the enterprise. All other subsequent expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation (continued)

(ii) (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
tangible fixed assets, less their estimated residual value, if
any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

— Freehold land and buildings
- Land Not depreciated
— Buildings 50 years

— Leasehold land and buildings 25 to 50 years

— Office furniture, 3 to 10 years
fixtures and equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years

(iii) Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
tangible fixed assets and bank premises are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the
income statement on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation
reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified to the
income statement.

(h) Operating lease

Where the Bank leases out assets under operating leases, the
assets are included in the balance sheet according to their nature
and, where applicable, are depreciated in accordance with the
Bank’s depreciation policies, as set out in note 2(g) except where
the asset is classified as an investment property. Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(j).

Where the Bank has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting
periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in the income statement as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to the income statement in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

()

Repossessed assets

In the recovery of impaired loans and advances, the Bank
may take possession of the collateral assets through court
proceedings or voluntary delivery of possession by the borrowers.
In accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy set out in note
2(j), impairment allowances for impaired loans and advances
are maintained after taking into account the net realisable value
of the repossessed assets. Repossessed assets continue to be
treated as securities for loans and advance. The Bank does not
hold any repossessed assets for its own use. Repossessed assets
are recorded at the lower of their carrying amount of the related
loans and advances and fair value less costs to sell at the date of
exchange. They are not depreciated or amortised.

Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank's assets are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence that financial assets are
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of
the Bank about one or more of the following loss events which
has an impact on the future cash flows on the assets that can be
estimated reliably:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
borrower;

— disappearance of an active market for financial assets
because of financial difficulties; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, the carrying amount is reduced to
the estimated recoverable amount by means of a charge to the
income statement.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of loans and receivables, which are measured at amortised cost,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Bank is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against loans
and receivables directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that borrower are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in the
income statement.

(i) Loans and receivables

Impairment losses on loans and receivables are measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets).
Receivables with a short duration are not discounted if the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

The total allowance for credit losses consists of two
components: individual impairment allowances, and
collective impairment allowances.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Loans and receivables (continued)

The individual impairment allowance is based upon
management’s best estimate of the present value of the
cash flows which are expected to be received discounted
at the original effective interest rate. In estimating these
cash flows, management makes judgements about the
borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value of
any underlying collateral or guarantees in favour of the Bank.
Each impaired asset is assessed on its own merits.

In assessing the need for collective loan loss allowances,
management uses statistical modelling and considers
historical trends of factors such as credit quality, portfolio
size, concentrations, and economic factors. In order
to estimate the required allowance, the Bank makes
assumptions both to define the way the Bank models
inherent losses and to determine the required input
parameters, based on historical experience and current
economic conditions.

The accuracy of the impairment allowances the Bank makes
depends on how well the Bank can estimate future cash
flows for individually assessed impairment allowances and
the model assumptions and parameters used in determining
collective impairment allowances. While this necessarily
involves judgement, the Bank believes that the impairment
allowances on advances to customers are reasonable and
supportable.

Any subsequent changes to the amounts and timing of the
expected future cash flows compared to the prior estimates
that can be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the write-down, will result in a change in the impairment
allowances on loans and receivables and be charged or
credited to the income statement. A reversal of impairment
losses is limited to the loans and receivables’ carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years.

When there is no reasonable prospect of recovery, the loan
and the related interest receivables are written off.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(0

(ii)

Loans and receivables (continued)

Loans and receivables with renegotiated terms are loans
that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
borrower’s financial position and where the Bank has
made concessions that it would not otherwise consider.
Renegotiated loans and receivables are subject to ongoing
monitoring to determine whether they remain impaired or
overdue.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale
financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had
been recognised in the investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to the income statement. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in the income statement
is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognised
in the income statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the equity
securities and the estimated future cash flows, discounted at
the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset
where the effect of discounting is material. Such impairment
losses are not reversed.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement in
respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through the income statement. Any subsequent increase in
the fair value of such assets is recognised in equity.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of impairment
losses in such circumstances are recognised in the income
statement.

Banco OCBC Weng Hang, S.A. « Annual Report 2017

35



MR

Notes to the Financial Statements
(LBPIEF T2 SatlRsh)

2 FESTHTHEER )

36

() BEEREE)
(iii) HtpEE

EEE®RE R - B RE kIR
BRABREEEEE(RER
SRR ZMERIN) REERE
Bk KNEEHRZBEELRE
BIMATFERCELRD -

IER I FBRITE
ER AU E 58 -

RfbEtERE

— AKEEEEZFHE

AT Bl & 5B A R E R M
ERERZBSE LT HE
RER  SRAMSIEER
B B PR (B R AR BTN % B E R R
@ H)50 BTAT 40 KA A 5 AR ORER
CRENER/REBHE - BX
BEEIETREMEESE

T%Hﬁfﬁﬁmui ’ ﬁ—ﬂly@ﬁ
FAEUR PO P S8 S EE IR S
ENR/NEEMAS (AN —(EIR
SHEEEM) -

— BERLXZHER
EEEMREEIEMBNIR
%EFEME@ﬁTW@i

AR ER R AR E S
% BRRREEESBM R
BERRASIR L HUREEZ B
(REMAER) ANWEERE
B EBRFEENKREENA
KR E MBI A FEER S
A RE(ARHEE) °

— RERKXZEL
WA SR E A M Bl AR RO fh T
TEBRME(L - AREERR
FHEE o

MEBRREERRNZEEDN
BREE - MRS RERELK
AREAEFERFER © BIEE
K Ol R AR RERR B R AT ALK
BmERA e

E/KFRITVROBRLF « 20175 FH

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Other assets
Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
each reporting date to identify indications that tangible fixed
assets (other than properties carried at revalued amount)
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro-rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(k) Cash and cash equivalents

)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with
banks, central banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term, highly liquid inter-bank placements and investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Balances
of banks, central banks and other financial institutions that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Bank’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees of the Bank.

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension
plan are recognised as expenses in the income statement as
incurred.

(m) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the
income statement except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts
of tax are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
prior years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available, against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(m) Income tax (continued)

(n)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such deduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available. Additional income taxes that
arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the
liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if, the Bank
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities. The principle of offsetting usually
applies to income tax levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse
the beneficiary of the guarantee (“the holder”) for a loss
the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Bank issues a financial guarantee to customers,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within other liabilities. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when such information is
obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available with the
estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made.



2 FESTHHEX )
(n) BERAHERR ZERAKEE

(%)

(i) BRTZHBERRE)
MR BSETERANEREEES
ERERANRNESERT#IESE %
T2 BTG FEREVUA = BESh - IR
(WEROFEATRRBERER
AAITIREBRR - ARQ)AATTER
HHEAERSRANSREBAESD
ERBEBRERARNSE (D
RERNSERE R EBEME

) - EHEESREME200)I0)
TR
(i) HEFERIREE

WATTA A EEE B A FRBROAE
HIEERT - RFAERERE M
B ERSAEES - Mo
BEVER SEfRFT - BAF R BEREE B
TR B ERRRER B
BMEZSEEA @ MIRBETEEHR
FERXNRETRIISLER -

AT BE TR A G E R - A
RSB M - BRI HH
e amig - AIEEESNHEA
BEEAKE - RENHAOKER
B BEEERESESEE IR
HZERREMPESE AR
BERARE -

(o) WARER

WA REE WK ERERN A EE
E o BRI E R EERAALT - MR
AMRAEHA EZE - AR A R
KPR

() FBKA
FA%ESRIANTBMARE
QEE23h LHIESS N2
R -

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities (continued)

()

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in the income statement over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(n)(ii) if and when (1) it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon the Bank under the
guarantee, and (2) the amount of that claim on the Bank is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried in other
liabilities in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Bank has a legal or constructive obligation,
complaint or legal claim, arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(o) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that economic
benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the

income statement as follows:

()

Interest income

Interest income for all interest-bearing financial instruments
is recognised in the income statement on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method.
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(o) Revenue recognition (continued)

(0

Interest income (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
the interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank
estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of
the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and
similar options) but does not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other
premiums or discounts. Cash rebates granted in relation to
residential mortgage loans are capitalised and amortised to
the income statement over their expected life.

Interest income and expenses on all financial assets and
liabilities that are classified as trading or designated at fair
value through profit or loss are considered to be incidental
and are therefore presented in net income from financial
instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss
together with all other changes in fair value arising from the
portfolio. Net income from financial instruments designated
at fair value through profit or loss and net trading income
comprise all gains and losses from changes in fair value (net
of accrued coupon) of such financial assets and financial
liabilities, together with interest income and expense, foreign
exchange differences and dividend income attributable to
those financial instruments.

For impaired financial assets, the accrual of interest
income based on the original terms of the financial assets
is discontinued, but any increase in the present value of
impaired financial assets due to the passage of time is
reported as interest income.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(ii) Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income is recognised in the income
statement when the corresponding service is provided,
except where the fee is charged to cover the costs of a
continuing service to, or risk borne for, the customer, or is
interest in nature. In these cases, the fee is recognised as
income in the accounting period in which the costs or risk is
incurred or accounted for as interest income.

Origination or commitment fees received/paid by the Bank
which result in the creation or acquisition of a financial
asset are deferred and recognised as an adjustment to
the effective interest rate. When a loan commitment is
not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan
commitment fees are recognised on a straight-line basis over
the commitment period.

(iii) Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment is quoted
ex-dividend.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
into Macau Patacas at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into Macau Patacas at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the reporting date. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Macau
Patacas using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

Exchange differences relating to investments at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial instruments are included
in net realised and unrealised gains/losses on trading financial
instruments or financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss. All other exchange differences relating to
monetary items are presented as gains/losses arising from dealing
in foreign currencies in the income statement. Differences
arising on translation of available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in reserves.

41
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FitoN) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Related parties

(1

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Bank if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Bank;

(ii) has significant influence over the Bank; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Bank or the Bank’s parent.

An entity is related to the Bank if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Bank are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Bank or an entity
related to the Bank;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (1);

(vii) a person identified in (1)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provide key management personnel services to the
Bank or to the Bank’s parent.
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2 Principal accounting policies (continued)
(g) Related parties (continued)
(2) An entity is related to the Bank if any of the following
conditions apply: (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

3 Accounting estimates and judgements
Note 24 contains information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to fair values of financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment losses

(i) Loans and advances
Loan portfolios are reviewed periodically to assess whether
impairment losses exist. The Bank makes judgements as to
whether there is any objective evidence that a loan portfolio is
impaired, i.e. whether there is a decrease in estimated future
cash flows. Objective evidence for impairment is described in
accounting policy note 2(j). If management has determined,
based on their judgement, that objective evidence for impairment
exists, expected future cash flows are estimated based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to those of the Bank. Historical loss experience is adjusted
on the basis of the current observable data. Management reviews
the methodology and assumptions used in estimating future cash
flows regularly to reduce any difference between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.

(i) Available-for-sale equity securities
The Bank determines that available-for-sale equity securities are
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value below cost. The determination of when a decline
in fair value below cost is not recoverable within a reasonable
time period is judgmental by nature, so profit and loss could be
affected by differences in this judgement.
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(BPIMETF T2l » 5atkrsok) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
4 EXxmH 4 Operating profit
(a) FEWA (a) Interest income
2017 2016
MEWNIRE : Interest income arising from:
—EURAFEERABEZ — financial assets not measured at fair value
TREE through profit or loss 735,566 784,574
Ho o of which:
— EmiRE 2R BUWA — interest income from listed investments 18,177 25,457
—JEETMRE ZFEWA — interest income from unlisted investments 46,738 22,689
—BESREE 2 EWA — interest income from impaired financial assets 593 82
(b) FIEXH (b) Interest expense
2017 2016
FMEXZHIRE : Interest expense arising from:
—EURFEERABREZ — financial liabilities not measured at
ERaE fair value through profit or loss 161,789 208,644
—EERREE — trading liabilities 3,109 3,517
164,898 212,161
Hrp e of which:
—BFEER T FEK — interest expense on current, fixed,
HahFmR A 8 savings and other deposits of customers 146,136 193,594
—RITRIZE « RRIFTTR — interest expense on deposits and balances
HEmh o mEEFERz of banks, central banks and other
B financial institutions 15,653 15,050
(c) RBERASWATE (c) Net fees and commission income
2017 2016
BR%% & KRS WA Fees and commission income
— BRATFRER — Deposit related business 12,555 12,976
—ERERES — Loan related business 12,566 15,675
— BB FE — Trade finance business 7,821 7,851
—BRAEAEER — Credit cards 45,845 45,727
—-BREEERBE — Stock-broking fees 33,829 24,735
—EEEREE - Wealth management fees 8,690 6,349
—EmEMAE — Other agency commissions 29,360 27,274
—HAh — Others 1,654 1,653
152,320 142,240
A ERSIRZ IR E RMAS KA FES The above fees and commission were generated from financial
BIR B IERHEE ERAE RIEEENAAF instruments that are not held for trading nor designated at fair
BEFSAEGZE/BIA - value through profit and loss.

44 E=EXZHROTRHERAT . 2017FFH



4 &G @) 4 Operating profit (continued)

(d) EflA (d) Other income
2017 2016
f& B A Dividend income 4,848 5,253
HNE B = e Gains arising from dealing in foreign currencies 28,955 38,776
Efth Others 2,151 1,574
35,954 45,603
(e) BxH (e) Operating expenses
2017 2016
==12%:N Staff costs
e REAMES KA Salaries and other staff costs 183,064 179,866
R RAE T AR AR Retirement benefit costs 11,923 12,253
194,987 192,119
TEFETE 2T RRESH  Premises and equipment expense,
excluding depreciation 24,523 24,533
W& (Misx15) Depreciation (note 15) 28,041 37,478
KEHEER Operating lease charges 2,133 2,731
ZEENE A Auditors’ remuneration 712 695
EAth Others 91,411 94,125
341,807 351,681
(f) EFRERAREFRE (f) Impairment losses and allowances charged on loans and
advances
2017 2016
B ZmEBR M EFERE  Impairment losses charged/(released) on
([E%) (FzE13) loans and advances (note 13)
& BBk E ZE Individually assessed 6,481 4,893
AR E LR Collectively assessed = (3,379)
6,481 1,514
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(BPIMETF T2l » 5atkrsok) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

5 HEWMEEEMEEZF 5 Net gain on disposal
= financial assets

of available-for-sale

2017 2016
HEREQRESEHEREEZ Net gain transferred from investment
LG revaluation reserve upon disposal 52,184 299
HEMHBEESHEEZ Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale
U E financial assets 8,434 27
60,618 326
6 BIE 6 Taxation
(a) KBERAZBIER : (a) Taxation in the income statement represents:
2017 2016
REATE — R B Current tax — Provision for Macau
HRBIER Complementary Tax
REE A Provision for the year 56,600 49,500
AHBE -FEARKNE Current tax — The People’s Republic of
EMB China (“PRC”) withholding tax
REFFEAERE Provision for the year 1 2
FEFEEERE Over provision in respect of prior years - (2,335)
1 (2,333)
EEHIE Deferred taxation
TR ERESE REE Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 335 467
56,936 47,634
2017 FERPIFTISH AT ER IR % The provision for Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12%
FEMFTIERT AN BIRITHEI12% (2016: 12%) of the Bank’s estimated assessable profits for the
(20164 : 12%)51& - year ended 31 December 2017.
BEE MmO T IB R RIBE A B S Taxation for offshore income is charged at the appropriate
TERARTEGR © current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant tax jurisdiction.
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6 FiE») 6 Taxation (continued)

(b) HBFEXHREABEAREZERF (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
AR - at applicable tax rate:
2017 2016
% %
R 7RI Vs A1) Profit before tax 470,642 100.00 413,126 100.00
BRI A& A 2 Notional tax on profit
ZEMRIE before taxation 56,477 12.00 49,575 12.00
NAHRAEEZ 2 Tax effect of non-deductible
MIETE expenses 1,058 0.22 1,860 0.45
HEERT R 2 Tax effect of non-taxable
AR & income (539) (0.11) (493) (0.12)
FFEFEEERF Over provision in prior years = = (2,335) (0.56)
HAh Others (61) (0.01) (975) (0.24)
rhiE A RHABEFEFIR Withholding tax in the PRC 1 = 2 -
BERHES E Actual tax expense 56,936 12.10 47,634 11.53
() EEEEBERAZKBAHRIES ! (c) Current tax payable in the balance sheet represents:
2017 2016
B P15 1/ 70 10 ZE 4 Provision for Macau Complementary Tax 56,862 49,809
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6 BIE®) 6 Taxation (continued)
(d) ERRBZELEHRIBEME : (d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised
FAREBEEBBERANRER CRLERIES The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
B2 HRE G R EEEINT balance sheet and the movements during the year are as follows:
RELER

EfTHHEE  REIEMNZ
ZEMEE REEE

Revaluation  Additional B
of available- impairment SBITITHE
for-sale debt  allowances Revaluation
financial under of bank a5
assets AMCM rules premises Total
ELERERE : Deferred tax arising from:
20171 A1 B 4&& At 1 January 2017 (25,642) (24,609) (56,417) (106,668)
WS R AR Charged to income statement - (335) - (335)
ER RS Charged to reserves (14,140) - (3,804) (17,944)
201712831 B4 At 31 December 2017 (39,782) (24,944) (60,221) (124,947)
201691 A1 B &% At 1 January 2016 (17,623) (23,225) (64,827) (105,675)
WRRA ), 12%  (Charged)/credited to
income statement - (1,384) 917 (467)
FEE A (R ) /42 B (Charged)/credited to reserves (8,019) - 7,493 (526)
201612831 B &8 At 31 December 2016 (25,642) (24,609) (56,417) (106,668)
Br_EatAh - RITR SRS BIRA B fhEf Apart from the above, the Bank does not have any significant
BARIELEFL B AR EIRBEE o unprovided deferred taxation arising for the year and as at the
reporting date.
7 EEREBAME 7 Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments
2017 2016
EERD Fees 148 100
H % Other emoluments 9,036 8,041
9,184 8,141
RATHP R EEEWEE A RWEERM - m Certain directors of the Bank received remuneration from group
25 MR BB ARAT o companies but no allocation has been made to the Bank.
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(@) *EERS

8 Dividends
(a) Dividends attributable to the year

2017 2016
BN E AR 2 AREAM% S Final dividend of MOP180 (2016: Nil)
FHRE BRI 180T per ordinary share to be proposed
(20164 : 4#) after the reporting date 216,000 -
HRIwEREREIR 2 AREKRE - AR The final dividend to be proposed after the end of the reporting

HERERRALE -

(b) RERHERIKE ZEFEER

period has not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date.

=N (b) Dividends attributable to the previous year, approved and

paid during the year

2017 2016
RERBERIRE 2 Final dividend in respect of the previous year,
EFRHARE (20164 : approved and paid during the year
FR MR 2507T) (2016: MOP250 per ordinary share) - 300,000

9 BENTFHETHEHZE - R4 9 Cash and balances with banks, central banks

1T R Bt & Bl A8 IR

and other financial institutions

2017 2016

AR Cash balances 474,920 421,665

TR R IRITHIR Balances with central banks 555,468 571,322

GFHERTTRI 2508 Balances with banks 123,016 166,064

1,153,404 1,159,051

10 EZEE 10 Trade bills

2017 2016

EOES: Trade bills 4,782 11,687
RITRFERA - WEE il E 5 ERELRIE During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been made in

(20164 « ) o

respect of the above trade bills (2016: Nil).
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1M EERREE 11 Trading assets
EERAREETEARNMESRTIAZIER Trading assets represent positive fair values of derivative financial
FTEEMPEEEBERAAIR S Z &% instruments and include balances with the immediate holding
AR PI#11,232,0007T (20164 : JRFI#E company amounting to MOP11,232,000 (2016: MOP11,797,000).

11,797,0007T) °

NREFERKHMIRE 12 Advances to customers and other accounts
(a) EFERRHMRBHREEEE (a) Loans and advances to customers and other accounts less

impairment allowances

2017 2016

BEERA%E Gross advances to customers 21,478,491 21,102,568
SREE R 8RR B ZE Individual impairment allowances for

(B$3E13) impaired loans and advances (note 13) (6,761) (3,665)
BEREBREEE Collective impairment allowances for

(F$3E13) loans and advances (note 13) (7.830) (7,830)

21,463,900 21,091,073

EEEFPARG Customer liability under acceptances 73,967 92,820

FEETH B Accrued interest 34,881 37,331

H{hBRIE Other accounts 60,202 87,552

21,632,950 21,308,776
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NREFERKREMERE &) 12 Advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(b) EFERTXEDE (b) Advances to customers analysed by industry sectors
EEER TR ERREZEER 2B The information concerning advances to customers by industry
B R ARG F DR EERE o sectors is prepared by classifying the advances according to the

usage of the advances and is stated gross of any impairment
allowances.
2017 2016
EFERAE REEFER XPEXREE REXPEX
Gross Impaired Gross Impaired
advances advances advances advances

to customers to customers to customers to customers

ERMEAZER Advances for use in Macau

T BEEReH Industrial, commercial and financial

MEERE Property development 558,438 - 889,035 -
MERE Property investment 2,008,366 - 2,101,474 -
BT Financial concerns 129,541 - 76,683 -
HEEATELE Wholesale and retail trade 600,809 2,320 617,456 364
Bl Manufacturing 87,756 - 120,176 =
B BB RS Transport and transport equipment 147,961 - 176,164 =
BABH Information technology 6,508 - 8,269 -
KEZEFREZER Share financing 84,551 - 111,933 -
HAth Others 2,349,479 1,773 722,613 180
{EPN Individuals

BEXEMEZER Advances for the purchase of

residential properties 11,420,508 1,978 11,646,294 3,288

ERAREER Credit card advances 204,773 623 213,134 350
HAh Others 3,398,305 5,095 3,868,847 6,085
20,996,995 11,789 20,552,078 10,267

BomE Trade finance 179,314 - 348,156 =
ERFAIMER Z & Advances for use outside Macau 302,182 = 202,334 =
21,478,491 11,789 21,102,568 10,267
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NREFEXRKHMEREE &)

52

(c)

(d)

BEZEFER
MEzEFPERER  HEMRRTER
ERIBEEEDOMIAT

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

12 Advances to customers and other accounts

(continued)

(c)

Impaired advances to customers

The gross impaired advances to customers, market value of
collaterals held with respect of such advances and individual
impairment allowances are as follows:

2017 2016

WEZEEFERERE Gross impaired advances to customers 11,789 10,267
BERFPEFEELRF Gross impaired advances to customers as a

BR@sEsantt percentage of total advances to customers 0.05% 0.05%
REZEFERZ B mHE Market value of collateral held with respect

to impaired advances to customers 5,028 4,510

ERID R Individual impairment allowances 6,761 3,665

MEzZEPEFTERZ ARG - ARE
BEHEBRER 2 TBRERE - AFt Rk
ZE G R AT | SRR 2 R IR AR PR R
ERIFH S MELER - MRERRER
BREME -

2017912 A31H &2016F 12 A 31
B ATEFRTAEZ AT LR
WA RITALER - MERR AR
% -

WEEE

20174124318 % 20164512 A31
B AMTEEHATRAKREEE -
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(d)

Impaired advances to customers are individually assessed loans
with objective evidence of impairment on an individual basis.
Individually assessed impairment allowances were made after
taking into account the net present value of future recoverable
amounts in respect of such loans and advances, and the
collaterals held mainly comprised properties.

There are no impaired advances to bank nor individual
impairment allowances made on advances to bank as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

Repossessed assets
At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the Bank did not
hold any repossessed assets.



13 EFERZBEER

13Impairment allowances on loans and

advances to customers

2017
1& 31 = a5t
Individual Collective Total
1A1B &8 At 1 January 3,665 7.830 11,495
it Additions 11,184 666 11,850
[o] #B% Releases (4,703) (666) (5,369)
R 72 FRE (M 5E4()) Net charged to income statement
(note 4(f)) 6,481 - 6,481
WEAFEMG 2 ER Recoveries of advances written off
in prior years 4,215 - 4,215
FE R Amounts written off (7.600) - (7,600)
12 A31 B & (FizE12(a)) At 31 December (note 12(a)) 6,761 7,830 14,591
2016
& 51 g A%
Individual Collective Total
1A1B&E% At 1 January 23,436 11,209 34,645
i Additions 6,735 1,514 8,249
(o] £ Releases (1,842) (4,893) (6,735)
R W e R F 88 (M aE4() Net charged to income statement
(note 4(f)) 4,893 3,379 1,514
I B FFE M 2 B Recoveries of advances written off
in prior years 1,746 = 1,746
FRMER Amounts written off (26,410) = (26,410)
12 A31 B &5 (Ki7E12(a)) At 31 December (note 12(a)) 3,665 7,830 11,495
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14 O HEEESREE 14 Available-for-sale financial assets
2017 2016
BHREES Debt securities
B BEEEIT-IE LT (HAFES)  Issued by sovereigns — unlisted (Treasury bills) 4,397,342 2,883,211
EBIT— LT Issued by corporates — listed 343,661 604,513
EBEITIELT Issued by corporates — unlisted = 91,077
BRIME T EW Issued by financial institutions — listed 367,037 175,323
SRIMERIT—IELT Issued by financial institutions — unlisted 52,545 54,000
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 5,160,585 3,808,124
BE Equity securities
SRIEERIT—IELET Issued by financial institutions — unlisted 370,968 205,274
SREEREIT— LW Issued by financial institutions — listed - 44,584
777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777777 370,968 249,858
5,531,553 4,057,982
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15 EFREEEE 15 Tangible fixed assets

2017
R - #15 -
RERER
Furniture,
RATITIHE fixtures,
Bank equipment and &Er
premises motor vehicles Total
RS EE : At cost or valuation:
20171 A1 B &% At 1 January 2017 653,042 188,595 841,637
INE Additions 228 16,490 16,718
H e Disposals - (6,755) (6,755)
BEA% Surplus on revaluation 38,948 - 38,948
BHEMBITITULZ Elimination of accumulated
2EHE depreciation on revalued
bank premises (8,636) - (8,636)
2017412 31 H &8 At 31 December 2017 683,582 198,330 881,912
FFTIE : Accumulated depreciation:
20171 A1 B &% At 1 January 2017 38,176 147,840 186,016
AEFEFEHRE (MI5T4(e)) Charge for the year (note 4(e)) 10,884 17,157 28,041
HE R Written back on disposals - (5,689) (5,689)
I E M IRTTITHE 2 Elimination of accumulated
R E depreciation on revalued
bank premises (8,636) - (8,636)
2017&12)?315%?% 777777777 Aﬁtﬁ?jﬂDﬁecember 2017 40,424 159,308 199,732
BREFE Net book value:
2017412 31 H & ¢ At 31 December 2017 643,158 39,022 682,180
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15 EFEEEE #) 15 Tangible fixed assets (continued)
2016
&L~ B -
B SER T
Furniture,
fixtures,
#R7777HE  equipment and B
Bank premises  motor vehicles Total
RS EE : At cost or valuation:
20161 H1B &% At 1 January 2016 692,600 184,291 876,891
INE Additions 26 9,706 9,732
H e Disposals - (5,402) (5,402)
EfhEE Deficit on revaluation (23,026) - (23,026)
BHEMBPITITULZ Elimination of accumulated
2FHE depreciation on revalued
bank premises (16,558) - (16,558)
20164 12 731 B &4 At 31 December 2016 653,042 188,595 841,637
FFTIE : Accumulated depreciation:
20161 A1 B &% At 1 January 2016 35,929 134,448 170,377
NEFE IR (KisEdce)) Charge for the year (note 4(e)) 18,805 18,673 37,478
H £ il B Written back on disposals - (5,281) (5,281)
I EHIRTTITHE 2 Elimination of accumulated
ZEtiE depreciation on revalued
bank premises (16,558) - (16,558)
727()7175%71727&73717[3%?@3% 777777777 At 31 December 2016 38,176 147,840 186,016
BREFE Net book value:
2016512 B31H4&#% At 31 December 2016 614,866 40,755 655,621
R2017F 128318 @ FIERHRETERRAZRN All of the Bank’s bank premises held for administrative use were
RITITHE - EABRBIBEMITE —AFE revalued by an independent firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation and
EHTHELREEERAER AR (EZSMHET Professional Services Limited as at 31 December 2017, who have
REBAEMBENEAEE)EMH - Z2 among their staff, fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors,
AT EAfE E (L M PTE D B AN B39 AR R with recent experience in the location and category of property being

TR - valued.
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15

16

17

BREEEE®)
HE2017F12831BLFE » I
TS HETB AR MRITITIE RN RIEE
i TE R P9 85 4,674,000 7T 2 E H 2 £ 8 FT
# 38,948,000 7T (2016 4 MK IE IE 7
I8 8 P9 ik 7,493,000 7T 2 B {4 5 18 R P9 I
23,026,0007T) B ER R Em PR - W
RITITH E (R R R AT ©

BRTRETRA R ZRITITIE AR AR &
2 ITEAR - EEAER2017F12 A 31
B e ARF9%44,510,0007T (20164 - JBFS
#45,672,0007T) °

RITITUE 2 FREVFE DT

15 Tangible fixed assets (continued)
The surplus on revaluation on bank premises held for administrative
use of MOP38,948,000 net of deferred tax of MOP4,674,000 for
the year ended of 31 December 2017 (2016: deficit on revaluation
of MOP23,026,000 net of deferred tax of MOP7,493,000) have
been recognised in equity and accumulated in the bank premises
revaluation reserve.

The carrying amount of the Bank premises held for administrative
use would have been MOP44,510,000 (2016: MOP45,672,000) at
31 December 2017 had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation.

The analysis of net book value of bank premises is as follows:

2017 2016
TR 2ok A ERE Freehold held in Macau 270,780 260,790
ERFI 24T Leasehold held in Macau
— 52 HRAE A — Short-term leases 372,378 354,076
643,158 614,866
EERAZAE 16 Trading liabilities

BEERASBEBEXTERATEASRMTIAZARAT
BEERBFEESGEIERAAREBIERA
RIR 5 2 &84 BRI 4,938,000t (2016
4 JRP9%20,396,0007T) ©

Trading liabilities represent the negative fair values of derivative
financial instruments and include balances with ultimate holding
company and immediate holding company amounting to
MOP4,938,000 (2016: MOP20,396,000).

Hit&E 17 Other liabilities
2017 2016
JE A5 F B Interest payable 37,337 33,259
A e Acceptances outstanding 73,967 92,820
EHERENER Provisions for liabilities and accrued charges 58,176 55,103
RE Cashier order 70,678 81,876
EHAh Others 117,101 96,207
357,259 359,265
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18 AKX i fE

18 Share capital and reserves

(a) BAE (a) Share capital
2017 2016
HMREWRKRAE : Authorised, issued and fully paid:
1,200,000% 2 & AR 1,200,000 ordinary shares of
FRURFIE1007T MOP100 each 120,000 120,000

EEBRFEE AR ERRTET IR K
B TARRATHNERELRER—F
MATREER - B EBRERTHRIG
FEEHFHREM -

(b) f#fE
(i) —REFE
—REFERBRRFERK LB
AR
(i) EERE

FEFBERRMSREREAEZFE
%#32/93M5R AL FE 6015 KRR
RN 432K 2 FRERK AL ©

(i) REEMEHE
REERHFERBREATHEESRE
EZRFARABEEY MEZ%
BE R TR BRI R 2(e) A
fR - REEMRBBLIFEERZF
B WEARRE o

(iv) SRATATUL B fh{EE
RITITU B (A R TY IR FE2(g) A
REVERITITUL B E 2 28 » R1TTT
UERFELFEERZAE - X
B AANKE
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(b)

The

holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as

declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share

at meeting of the Bank. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Bank's residual assets.

Reserves

(i) General reserve
The general reserve was set up from the transfer of
unappropriated profits and is available for distribution.

(ii) Legal reserve
Legal reserve was set up in accordance with Article 60 of
Decree Law No 32/93/M and Article 432 of the Macau
Commercial Code.

(iii) Investment revaluation reserve
Investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial
assets until the assets are derecognised and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies in note 2(e). It
does not represent realised profits and is not available for
distribution.

(iv) Bank premises revaluation reserve

Bank premises revaluation reserve has been set up and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for the revaluation of bank premises in note 2(g). It does not
represent realised profits and is not available for distribution.



18 A K &) 18 Share capital and reserves (continued)
(b) fEE(E) (b) Reserves (continued)
(v) EERE (v) Regulatory reserve

RiFEE RIEDIFE18/93 5% 2 R
E o SREBOFEEEERIRR
BMBRES —E B DL &ER
ERERE MEBZEREERE
ERERMINZEEEHERATE
HERFRE1% 2 —REBE - 217

B BURBE 2 B R IR R R 2() BT
TEETHERER - B ETR
BEHINEE R RIERRKE
AT HBFRFHEL —FRER
ZREEFKFREFRELERZ
ZH - ERAENBAZERBAES
s - AEEEERBIIRET

In accordance with Aviso n.°18/93-AMCM, financial
institutions are required to maintain a minimum level
of specific provision for a bad and doubtful loan at a
percentage depending on the overdue period of the
loan, and a general provision at a minimum of 1% (“the
minimum level”) of the total balance of performing loans
and certain credit-related off-balance sheet exposure. The
Bank recognises allowance for impairment losses on loans
and advances in accordance with the policy as set out in note
2(j). In case where such impairment allowances are lower
than the minimum level as required by AMCM, the Bank will
transfer an amount, which is equal to the difference between
the allowance and the minimum level, after adjustment
for taxation impact, from its unappropriated profits to the
regulatory reserve. The amount of regulatory reserve transfer
for the year is as follows:

2017 2016
—RERE 2 BERME 2 Increase/(decrease) in impairment allowances
#Zn, Cr) for general provision 4,472 (8,220)
RiE R R e 5+ 28| Mm Ik Specific provision recognised under IAS
BIESE BIEMEX but not under AMCM rules
ENzEERAS (1,683) 19,756
BESLEBIEFHIEREI  Net increase in impairment allowances
ZIBEREFE under AMCM rules 2,789 11,536
HEINRER 2 BiIA Tax effect on the additional impairment
(Ft3E6(d)) allowances (note 6(d)) (335) (1,384)
2,454 10,152
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1VEERERUIZEAREE

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

19 Off-balance sheet exposures

(a) HABEHREFEUEREEE

SREHLAEEANENEERE
BEREZZRBERD - FHEHTF
R BEREZEEHERHEMRS
UREEFHATAR  BEAURREE
BERE  BEREEE - BUEERH
TAEmPRZER  KRBERHREET
BRIk EERBER - WESHE
TR RN A ARBBIRIUN B P 2 E
gz BBREaR o MR REDERK
AEBEHEZHR O TERER - &
HMERRBI TRRREZRERE

EEERRINESESRBEERRA
EE011/20155 2R E - FTAZER
IENF0%ZE100% o

AT REREARERZ R ER RAYE
ZHEZEBE

(a) Contingent liabilities and commitments to extend credit

Contingent liabilities and commitments arises from forward
asset purchases, amounts owing on partly paid-up shares
and securities, forward deposits placed, asset sales or other
transactions with recourse, as well as credit-related instruments
which include, letters of credit, guarantees and commitments
to extend credit. The risk involved in these credit instruments is
essentially the same as the credit risk involved in extending loan
facilities to customers. The contractual amounts represent the
amounts at risk should the contract be fully drawn upon and
the client defaults. Since a significant portion of guarantees and
commitments is expected to expire without being drawn upon,
the total of the contract amounts is not representative of future
cash flows.

The risk weights used in the computation of credit risk weighted
amounts ranged from 0% to 100% in accordance with AMCM
Guideline Notice 011/2015-AMCM.

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liabilities and commitments:

2017 2016
BEEEEZREAR Direct credit substitutes 179,771 181,038
B A AR ER Trade-related contingencies 46,650 44,703
Efth AR Other commitments
— RAHAR TN 81 F — With an original maturity of
not more than 1 year - 45,063
— [RARHABR 1 EF LA | — With an original maturity over 1 year 1,056,281 269,799
— Al AR EUB — Which are unconditionally cancellable 3,066,720 2,911,527
aEr Total 4,349,422 3,452,130
ZERRINESEE Credit risk weighted amount 683,655 410,146
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19 EEEBRUIZABEE &)
(b) BAREE
RI2ANEAEEEREEEEMI
RIEBS TSR A 1B H 24 2 B AR A O
T

ERERFISH X

Expenditure authorised and contracted for

19 Off-balance sheet exposures (continued)
(b) Capital commitments
Capital commitments for acquisition of tangible fixed assets
outstanding at 31 December not provided for in the financial
statements were as follows:

2017 2016

5,874 1,828

EREEARRFT K 2RAX

Expenditure authorised but not contracted for = =

() HEMEARE
MI12A318 - RETATREEMEEHE
g ARZFEERNBEEFRBLBENOT :

(c) Operating lease commitments
As at 31 December, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for properties and
equipment are payable as follows:

2017 2016
1R Within one year 804 1,049
15 A E{B5E A After one year but within five years 324 377
1,128 1,426

AITAKRERERAEAZ B EMR
e MEFH—RIEI1E24EH - &
MRAIBENBEMIEREASRE - A
HEHOY T EHRIAEE -

The Bank leases a number of properties and items of equipment
under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of one to twenty-four months, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.
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20

62

TTESMTA
TETARERBAY  HEERTMSR
MRS EEREERIEHAE -

RIRBONTETERGRARERTF,E
ko HBRR AR TZEBERKES ©
RAOITEABREIFE - XTZ2HERERS
REASTERERKEFEERSZBRBA
Ez8mRZ 5 MmABMZEATEZEHAH
BRHES 2 & ft T EAEL o ARITI0 &R
EAZEEBAT A(EE P ERE - #E
201712 AVEBABITEIAEAREEBEZ
FEREBENIREEABRANZIEER
BREE|RBERBABEIIIR-

(a) STETAZEREH
TRARTVELANBERNEES
B ORERRIBAMIN - ETH
ZEBEHARNBEARATR IR S
B I TREREBREE -

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

20 Derivatives financial instruments

Derivatives refer to financial contracts whose value depends on the
value of one or more underlying assets or indices.

The majority of the derivatives transactions were initiated in response
to customer demand and the remaining were economic hedges for
the Bank's fixed-interest rate loans and debt securities. No significant
speculative positions are maintained by the Bank. The Bank entered
into interest rate swaps to hedge its fixed-rate loans and debt
securities so as to achieve a floating rate return. The Bank has not
elected to adopt hedge accounting in respect of these swaps. The
positive and negative fair values of the derivatives as at 31 December
2017 were reported within “trading assets” and “trading liabilities”
respectively on the balance sheet.

(a) Notional amounts of derivatives
The following tables provide an analysis of the notional amounts
of derivatives of the Bank by relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining periods to settlement at the reporting date.
The notional amounts of the derivatives indicate the volume
of outstanding transactions at the reporting date and do not
represent amounts at risk.

2017
150k
B5% R
1R  Over 1year S5EE
Within but within Over &%
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
[EXREY Exchange rate contracts
=H Forwards 2,015,588 241,313 - 2,256,901
BB A\ HRRE Options purchased 779,032 239,475 = 1,018,507
Jh ) R Options written 779,032 239,475 - 1,018,507
FEBEE Y Interest rate swap contracts - 412,000 119,104 531,104
BREREEH Equity contracts
[=PN:GY S Options purchased 2,169 = = 2,169
S H E Options written 2,169 - - 2,169
3,577,990 1,132,263 119,104 4,829,357
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4=

177
(a)

(b)

e T Rz 20 Derivatives financial instruments (continued)
STEITE-EZ=S5 (&) (a) Notional amounts of derivatives (continued)
2016
1A £
B5F R
1%/ Over 1 year SEIAE
Within but within Over B
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
B R & 49 Exchange rate contracts
= HA Forwards 1,710,820 448,283 — 2,159,103
fE AHARE Options purchased 790,319 431,055 - 1,221,374
i Y B Options written 790,319 431,055 = 1,221,374
FERBHEHL Interest rate swap contracts - 412,000 - 412,000
IR E=H A 4 Equity contracts
B\ HAfE Options purchased 5,315 - - 5,315
) ERfE Options written 5,315 - - 5,315
3,302,088 1,722,393 - 5,024,481
PETAZGERRMESEE (b) Credit risk weighted amounts of derivatives
2017 2016
FERA 4 Exchange rate contracts 44,843 75,356
FEISH A & Interest rate swap contracts 3,447 2,927
REEMEE A Equity contracts 142 448
48,432 78,731

T E (=B R M AN4E 2058 P A 2 BB N4
DIRBEEERBEFR011/20155% 2 &
ARRHEHREAERIUARR 5 F
ERAMRR - BIHIB - EXE4 - FIXis
Hi - BREEMAE LR 2 BB INEN T
0%ZE100% °

HERBIRFRESFELHZY
2,

Credit risk weighted amount refers to the amount as computed
in accordance with AMCM Guideline Notice 011/2015-AMCM on
capital adequacy and depends on the status of the counterparty
and the maturity characteristics. The risk weights used range
from 0% to 100% for exchange rate, interest rate swap and
equity contracts.

These amounts do not take into account the effects of bilateral
netting arrangements.
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21 BEREBRMHE
(a) BARHRREREDFEEZRSF

21 Notes to the cash flow statement
(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash generated

64

HHERR from operating activities
2017 2016
EEEE Operating activities
R A A Profit before taxation 470,642 413,126
FRLT - Adjustments for:
e Depreciation 28,041 37,478
HEBFEEEE ZFIBK Net losses on disposal of tangible fixed assets 208 45
HERAHEEERMEEL Net gains on disposal of available-for-sale
R financial assets (60,618) (326)
NEERES 2 FRE Amortisation of net premium of
debt securities (38,690) (8,940)
DEBRITHERE 2N Amortisation of discount of certificates of
deposit issued - 1,258
& S A Dividend income (4,848) (5,253)
GNEE S (U es) HBR Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (26,681) 3,676
EFRBERLRRERRE Net change of impairment losses and
SR allowances charged on loans and advances 6,481 1,514
374,535 442,578
RAEBRA=EASIA L2 Decrease in placements with banks with
RITTERTR D original maturity over three months - 239,502
BSEREL(3Em) Decrease/(increase) in trade bills 6,905 (2,197)
BEERABREERD Decrease in trading assets 11,773 42,017
EFPERREMERIE (Increase)/decrease in gross advances to
(), md customers and other accounts (330,655) 1,063,716
RAEAR A=A EZ Increase in amounts due from immediate
THEBIEZER AR RRZR holding company and fellow subsidiaries
B A 7] 2 FRIEIE A0 with original maturity over three months (770,581) (115,598)
RITRAIZE ~ PRI|ITR Increase in deposits and balances of banks,
H b4 MRS > 17 208 4 central banks and other financial institutions 1,863 1,510
ERPAR  EHREERR Increase/(decrease) in current, fixed, savings
#hn,Crd) and other deposits of customers 1,177,088 (596,182)
FRERD Decrease in certificates of deposits - (399,570)
EERAREERD Decrease in trading liabilities (18,824) (79,625)
HEwBaECHRD), $Eh (Decrease)/increase in other liabilities (1,180) 22,971
HEZBRARKRZRMNE AT Increase in amounts due to immediate holding
A7 g company and fellow subsidiaries 270,729 30,082
HEXTHELEZHSRE Net cash generated from the operations 721,653 649,204
BAHBRPETS IR K Macau Complementary Tax and PRC
REE ARFEMBETENH Withholding Tax paid (49,549) (51,032)
HEETBELE2ESTE Net cash generated from operating activities 672,104 598,172
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21 BERERNTE =) 21 Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)
(b) RERZEFREBEE ZHM (b) Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents

2017 2016

R4 RFHERITRIE - B iR1T Cash and balances with banks, central banks

REAM S mhE IR and other financial institutions 1,153,404 1,159,051
TE I E B A% A &) K2 E & 2 5] Amounts due from immediate holding
KIE company and fellow subsidiaries
— R & RIFHERITR 58 — Cash and balances with banks 73,532 98,702
—RAHRA=MEA KA — Placements with banks with original
EBRFE IR TT R A maturity within three months 3,164,287 3,702,946
A E SR EE Available-for-sale financial assets
— B ES — Treasury bills - 931,260
4,391,223 5,891,959
R2EABEALRS 22 Material related party transactions
(a) EETHABZHE (a) Key management personnel remuneration
FETBABZME - BIEWNETFTH Remuneration for key management personnel, including amounts
BIEMRITESRIE - WHMT : paid to the Bank’s directors as disclosed in note 7, is as follows:
2017 2016
HEE BB R Short-term employee benefits 17,892 17,583
BBk 12 1R A Post-employment benefits 1,598 1,564
19,490 19,147
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(b) RAREZERDF  EREZERDFDRERK (b)
BRARZRS
REEA  AMTREEIZBRARERR
TERARRBEBERARERKTR
TERARERAAMBARZRS - 5
B RIESEBRERGIET -

BRIRBEERMIBHRKE M 225 K%
B FAZWX - BEBBRA I
FIAE 2 WwE B AR R TR
TS ¢

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)

22 Material related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with ultimate holding company, immediate
holding company and fellow subsidiaries

During the year, transactions with the Bank’s ultimate holding
company, Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited and
immediate holding company, OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited and
fellow subsidiaries were entered into by the Bank in the ordinary
course of business and on normal commercial terms.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the income and expense for the
year, on and off-balance sheet outstandings at the reporting
date and corresponding average balances for the year are set out

below:
(i) WMARXH (i) Income and expense
2017 2016
A B A Interest income 63,845 82,179
A B S Interest expenses (3,632) (4,990)
Hablas Other income 30,140 20,592
BIEEERRZemIT A Net (losses)/gains from financial instruments
ZIR(IEKR) held for trading (422) 5,785
=B E A Operating expenses (26,191) (30,631)
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REXKBEALIRF 5
(b) BRERAT - EEERADRERM

BLEZRE (&)
(i) EERBERAZERR

22 Material related party transactions (continued)

(b) Transactions with ultimate holding company, immediate

holding company and fellow subsidiaries (continued)

(ii) On-balance sheet outstandings

HEHES i Etek
Ending balance Average balance
2017 2016 2017 2016
BE Assets
e NEHIRTRE - Cash and balances with banks,
RRERTT R E A S R central banks and other
Mg financial institutions 73,532 98,702 83,442 87,730
FHFRERITRZE Placements with banks, central
RRERTT R E M S R banks and other financial
WiE5a institutions 4,785,549 4,547,876 4,854,202 7,042,069
ZEEERREMIKRE Advances to customers and
other accounts 20,902 26,653 23,262 22,806
4,879,983 4,673,231 4,960,906 7,152,605
i=Fi Liabilities
RITRIZE « PRIBTT Deposits and balances of banks,
REMESREE L central banks, and other
Tx financial institutions 308,965 38,398 103,106 22,194
EF&ER - FH - #E  Current, fixed, savings and
REMTFR other deposits of customers 218 218 218 218
Hih G & Other liabilities 180 18 60 447
309,363 38,634 103,384 22,859
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2ERBEALTRZ #) 22 Material related party transactions (continued)
(b) RAEBRAT  BEBEZERATREZRK (b) Transactions with ultimate holding company, immediate
BRARZRB (&) holding company and fellow subsidiaries (continued)

(i) EERBERIN2HEER

(iii) Off-balance sheet outstanding

‘EALER Tk
Ending balance Average balance
2017 2016 2017 2016
EHELE Contract amounts
HEEESARER Direct credit substitutes 9,369 31,424 28,595 5,258
(iv) fTTESRMT B2 &8 (iv) Derivative financial instruments outstanding
FEAGHS T
Ending balance Average balance
2017 2016 2017 2016
&L Notional amounts
EHEXSH Forward exchange rate
contracts 2,768,144 2,657,965 3,584,255 4,861,447
F == B G 4 Interest rate swap contracts 531,104 412,000 451,967 354,921
[R5 4 Equity contract 2,169 5,315 4,053 3,889

(c) EEEX
HZE2017F12A831BILFEZHBE
AEREHAEZ(20165F : £) o

(c) Loans to directors
No significant loans have been outstanding during the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

FN - BEREFNLEETHEEALZ
R EMRERKER (20165 ¢
&) o

(d) During the year, no allowance for impairment losses has been
made in respect of the above advances to related parties (2016:
Nil).

(d)
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23 B AR EE

AITEHIEREK - BFRRE - NERATT
i Z A REERRE - NTAEZEER
BEAGREREMEL - AFH - 578
ERREHEERR  RBESRR - ™5
R REERR - ZFRABREEBE - BF
ERBENREESIRIEEZRESRE
ThHERREEFH ZESENRERZES
CEERBEEZB S  FEHRE - AE
BB eETEMRRIBIIRE - ATER
HZEBR LR FREEFAEH -

AU T EAITE DB - BB
REBMEIE  TEMEF  UREREED
ZER -

(a) FERRER
SERBIRNR 5 H FRERETTHA
o AREATHEN BEZRE B
B TAETAREMEYE EFEER
BARTZRARBEIROREZES
REITAITEERBRER -

EERRERIBINEMEY  BEE
EEBRNERKETREREEF G
RYEHNEER - AMINEERRSE T
BT EENER  EEHZEERNE
F - BR0BEGIORERNBER - LR
BRFSREEBEHAES| KRR
BT R 3% A0 & 522 B 2R I E 3 KRR
EENREREE

SERRERESICHRATHESRTF
fit - URAREZESTER®E R
%o BERFMABEREERREE -
RERE EEEERE BEXNER

7 FEEBREBERR

23 Financial risk management

The Bank has established policies, procedures and limits to manage
various types of risk that the Bank is exposed to. Risk management
processes and management information systems are in place to
identify, measure, monitor and control credit risk, liquidity risk market
risk and operational risk. The risk management policies, procedures
and limits are approved by the Board of Directors or its designated
committee, and are monitored and reviewed regularly by the relevant
risk management committees, such as the Credit Committee and the
Asset and Liability Management Committee (“ALMCO"). Internal
auditors perform regular audits and independent checking to ensure
compliance with the policies and procedures.

This note presents information about the Bank’s exposure to each
of the above risks, the Bank’s objectives, policies and processes
for measuring and managing risks, and the Bank’s management of
capital.

(a) Credit risk management
Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty in a
transaction may default. It arises from the lending, trade finance,
treasury, derivatives and other activities undertaken by the Bank.
The Board of Directors has delegated the Bank’s credit risk
management to the Credit Committee, which is chaired by the
Bank’s General Manager.

The credit risk management function is independent of the
business units. It oversees the implementation of credit policies
and ensures the quality of credit evaluation and approval. Credit
approval is conducted in accordance with the Bank’s credit policy,
which defines the credit extension criteria, the credit approval
and monitoring processes, the loan classification system and
impairment policy. The credit policy also takes into account the
guidelines issued by the AMCM and accounting standards issued
by Macau SAR with respect to large exposures and impairment
requirements.

Guidelines to manage credit risk have been laid down in
the Bank’s Loaning Manual, which is regularly reviewed and
approved by the Credit Committee. The Loaning Manual covers
the delegated lending authorities, credit extension criteria, credit
monitoring process, loan classification system, credit recovery
and impairment policy.
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(a) EEEREEE)
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(i)

(ii)

EEERRE

TCEEE-REMNAFRENKE
REPREMH - FREL B FEMIHI -
EREERARNIEFEREER
MBI - RITEZRBERMEF -
UNHE R ERZHF R HNEE
EERR  ARARAEHEREBZ S
HE  MEEREPME » ATTEH
E—EERRABERZHFHEY
MHAB L EEBZEMR - XIHE
FAAE R TT 3 R AN F B8 5RA R fE 3R
ABERBRIARRE - THwERE
EXEBREIFEERR - R1TRE
EERMEE  BEREZRERNR
BREBFA - REFETEEN
A RAZAE

AITHBELETZEABRNEREERZ
REZE - ARANEERRIEHER
BERFERINIENRZHF
TEIERNER - REZBEE
HEEXZEENEEER - @5
R B K MBI B E R

ZERERR
RITNEEEEBRMERRFZ
B e 5 SR 1T dm O R T I
RENEREEEUNZS - T
EEERRNEETERERRT
R B P BRETHRE DT &
HAEZ - ATIRENEEHKRA
MG ER - TEERZMERTEmR
R hEFAS -

(iii) EBIEEREZ AR

HEERMNAGEEIAREEE
@ AE FEBERERTEPEMN
EERRAR - Bt - BEAX 5L
ANEREFPHFEERRARESW
EEHE  HAaRFREMER -

o
]
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23 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)

(0

(i)

Corporate credit risk

The corporate lending is generally made to customers with
strong financial background. In addition to market targeting,
the principal means of managing credit risk is the credit
approval process. The Bank has policies and procedures to
evaluate the potential credit risk of a particular counterparty
or transaction and to approve the transaction. For corporate
clients, the Bank has a detailed risk grading system that
is applied to each counterparty on a regular basis. The
Bank also has limits for exposure to individual industries
and for borrowers and groups of borrowers, regardless of
whether the exposure is in the form of loans or non-funded
exposures. The Bank also has a review process to ensure the
proper level of review and approval depending on the size of
the facility and risk grading of the credit.

The Bank undertakes ongoing credit analysis and monitoring
at several levels. The credit policies promote early detection
of counterparty, industry or product exposures that require
special attention. The Credit Committee oversees the
overall portfolio risk as well as individual problem loans and
potential problem loans on a regular basis.

Retail credit risk

The Bank’s retail credit policy and approval process are
designed for the fact that there are high volumes of relatively
homogeneous, small value transactions in each retail loan
category. Because of the nature of retail banking, the credit
policies are based primarily on statistical analyses of risks
with respect to different products and types of customers.
The Bank monitors its own and industry experience to
determine and periodically revise product terms and desired
customer profiles.

(iii) Credit-related commitments

The risks involved in credit-related commitments and
contingencies are essentially the same as the credit
risk involved in extending loan facilities to customers.
These transactions are, therefore, subject to the same
credit application, portfolio maintenance and collateral
requirements as for customers applying for loans.



23 B BEREE #) 23 Financial risk management (continued)

(a) EERKBEE(E) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) EERBHES (iv) Concentrations of credit risk
EFERBNET RN —EXR5HF Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
THEME  KEEXTEREZANT geographic, economic or industry factors similarly affect
2 mzEEREnEREERKRY groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is
RITHRERREZEESE - REFEN material in relation to the Bank’s total exposures. The Bank
REBERARKREZHEBRARZ does not have significant exposure to any individual or group
FIBHN - RTHEHERBEA - B of customers or counterparties except for the amount due to
BEE X HEFFEEARERE - the immediate holding company and fellow subsidiaries.
(1) =BERERE (1) Maximum exposure
ENFTARHE N ER A The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
ERARANBART RikEH date without taking into consideration of any collaterals
MNx=EERR  EEEA held or other credit enhancements is represented by the
BERNSIET /A E LR carrying amount of each financial assets in the balance
BEEEFEENREE - ZB&xe sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. A
BT summary of the maximum exposure is as follows:
2017 2016

FHRERITRIZE « PRIBITR Balances with banks, central banks

H b & s iE TR and other financial institutions 678,484 737,386
B H5HRE Trade bills 4,782 11,687
BEABREE Trading assets 14,491 26,264
EFERRHEMIRIEA Advances to customers and

other accounts 21,632,950 21,308,776
FHREBER AR MRZR Amounts due from immediate holding

N EPNEIE S company and fellow subsidiaries 4,879,983 4,673,231
T ETmEE Available-for-sale financial assets 5,531,553 4,057,982
WS ER R E A E{ER AR Financial guarantees and other credit

ZRANETE related contingent liabilities 226,421 225,741
EREAEREMEEAER Loan commitments and other credit

ZEYE related commitments 4,123,001 3,226,389

37,091,665 34,267,456
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23 B R ERE #) 23 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) EERKBEE(E) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) GERBHES(E) (iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)

(2) ExZEEEZ (2) Credit quality of loans and advances
RITAXERRIARTEER Advances to bank are only made to bank with good
FHIRITR % - RFEXAE credit rating. The credit quality of advances to customers
EEZOTET ¢ can be analysed as follows:

2017 2016
XEERRARE Gross advances to customers
— @At IE R E — neither past due nor impaired 21,017,827 20,618,862
—BEREIERE — past due but not impaired 448,875 473,439
— B E (FEE12(c)) — impaired (note 12(c)) 11,789 10,267
21,478,491 21,102,568
He Of which:
HEER4EE Gross advances to customers
— 1% : &1 — Grade 1: Pass 21,407,949 21,040,427
—24% : BFRIBEER — Grade 2: Special mention 58,753 51,874
—3% : TEEZEE — Grade 3: Substandard 1,872 3,649
— 48 ERIRIA — Grade 4: Doubtful 8,851 3,828
—5#4% : 1Bk — Grade 5: Loss 1,066 2,790
21,478,491 21,102,568
RIEBRBREEESERMS The Bank classifies the loans and advances in accordance
RANERYEHEE »E with the loan classification system adopted by the Hong

3K e Kong Monetary Authority (“HKMA").
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(a) BERREEE)
(iv) EERKRIE ()
2) Bz EEEEE)
BEEERES BFERER

23 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)
(2) Credit quality of loans and advances (continued)
The ageing analysis of advances to customers that are

DR : past due but not impaired is as follows:
2017 2016
BHEIEREZ B E5RM%  Gross advances to customers that are
past due but not impaired
—BE3MEAKAT — past due 3 months or less 442,497 472,824
—6fE A sk A ™ME3E A £ — 6 months or less but over 3 months 6,378 615
448,875 473,439

MW2017F 12 A318 © A17
ZEFBEHEEIEKERBR
FRERNETEBERERME
429,0007T (2016 4 : R P&
813,0007T) °

(3) BEFPRRITEAIZFEAAINE

MEXZEERREET AR
ATEEEERBREETA—
% IR S FERER
APAR - HHE R R 5 HF RE
RER - REBEAITEEERR - B
FEREZEERE  BRIARLT
TERERNRELBIRR
T Pt i HIBBBAR B 1575 75 3k
FRIEA -

As at 31 December 2017, advances to customers that
would be past due or impaired had the terms not
been renegotiated amounted to MOP429,000 (2016:
MOP813,000).

(3) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to
customers and bank
Credit risk of treasury transactions is managed in the
same way as the Bank manages its corporate lending
risk and risk gradings are applied to the counterparties
with individual counterparty limits set. It is the Bank's
credit policy not to invest debt securities that are below
the grading of BBB by Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services
or their equivalents unless it is approved by the Credit
Committee.
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23 B R ERE #) 23 Financial risk management (continued)
(a) EERKBEE(E) (a) Credit risk management (continued)
(iv) GERBHES(E) (iv) Concentrations of credit risk (continued)
(3) BEFRIRITAEEHAI 2 (3) Credit quality of financial assets other than advances to

RIE R - RBERFREE
SEE BT AR L EER
BOFERMST 2 EBHERE

customers and bank (continued)

At the reporting date, the credit quality of investment
in debt securities analysed by designation of external
credit assessment institution, Standard & Poor’s Ratings

BEZENT ¢ Services or their equivalents, is as follows:
2017 2016
AA-EAA+ AA- to AA+ 4,544,316 3,058,534
A-EA+ A- to A+ 409,121 293,257
ERA- Lower than A- 42,206 77,994
IR Unrated 164,942 378,339
5,160,585 3,808,124

(4) E#Fdn sk B b5 HIEAH (4) Collaterals and other credit enhancements

AIIRBEPERMBEMER
15 AfthEEZMER B
FRRBERERZANERR

B ESERENSRBEEM
FAENERGREMMERRET

The Bank holds collaterals against advances to
customers in the form of mortgages over property,
other registered securities over assets, cash deposits and
guarantees.

An estimate of the fair value of collaterals and other
credit enhancements held against past due but not

B A FEEMKETOT impaired financial assets is as follows:
2017 2016
PBHEFREC EREE Fair value of collaterals and other
miEa 2 \R MR EM credit enhancements held against
ERRAZATER financial assets that are past due
but not impaired 1,506,795 2,142,807

ERPETIRTEENRED MG
BEFRRBRD TR E12(b)A
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Analysis of credit risk concentration by the industrial
sector of advances to customers is disclosed in note
12(b).



23 B EREE 2
(b) AEBHESABREE

RBETCRREEARESENEBNEE
BEXENIINERORR - AITEFT
UREHESERERRE - WREMR
RMERFEENRBES °

MBETHAEREERBERZES
MTHER BERBERZEEHMS
REERE WA ARERE WK
BEREMAZERDECRABRNES
HIEWALTHENX BEEERERDESR
REREH  FHREREAHNRBE
EHRRERER  #5  AEREERY
ExRk  WREZEHRBESERE
HERE  EFERERYE S RBRRE
REER  #FEBRERSESRBRAS
MFFETIR  YERFRABDESRREHE
RERRERRBEARSREREEZR
BB Rz -

RAR-—REEXBTNESER K
REARBUENEES - TIEEERR
TTREFETS - I RITTERF
ENEAEER BN EFREREH
REESFEXR - AINEHMR/RDES
ARSUEITERIH - ARRE ZRFFF
RRBES - U TZATTEREENE
BHIR DM RN @S BB ER K E
Hi A HARZIR

23 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk of the Bank’s inability to fund an increase
in assets or meet its obligations as they fall due. The Bank has
established liquidity management policies for ensuring adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times.

Liquidity is managed day-to-day by the treasury under the
direction of ALMCO. ALMCO, which comprises personnel
from senior management, treasury function, risk management,
financial management and other business areas that could
affect liquidity risk, is responsible for overseeing the liquidity
risk management, in particular implementation of appropriate
liquidity policies and procedures, identifying, measuring and
monitoring liquidity risk, and control over the liquidity risk
management process. The Board of Directors approves the
liquidity risk strategy and policies, maintains continued awareness
of the overall liquidity risk profile, and ensures liquidity risk is
adequately managed and controlled by senior management
within the established risk management framework.

To cater for short-term funding requirements during ordinary
course of business, sufficient liquid assets are held and also
access to the interbank market is maintained. In addition,
adequate standby facilities are maintained in order to meet any
unexpected and material cash outflow. The Bank also performs
regular stress tests on its liquidity position to ensure adequate
liquidity is maintained at all times. The following tables set
out the detail of the analysis of the Bank’s material assets and
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
periods at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.
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23 B R ERE #) 23 Financial risk management (continued)
(b) REIELRKMEE(Z) (b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) EEREEREREAZSHEN (i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based
B 1k 2 [ ek 2 PR 21 5 B B BR & on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
& contractual maturity date
2017

MEARE  3EAML  1FERE
B3@Am  B1FR E5ER

Over Over Over
PEEZ  1EERm  1month 3 months Tyear  SELE
Repayable ~ Within butwithin  but within ~ but within Over 53] 2%
ondemand  1month 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears  Undated Total
BE Assets
BARBHSTAE . Cashand balances with banks,
R RTREMSE  central banks and other financial
BETA insttutions 1013510 139,894 - - - - - 1153404
LUESH Trade bills m 1,012 2,798 - - - - 4,782
BERRLE Trading assets - - - - - - 14,491 14,491
RFER Advances to customers 240,057 505,064 452,981 1,727,757 6,996,550 11,541,491 - 21,463,900
GHEBERATR  Amounts due from immediate
RENBAAE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 93542 2,724,132 1,927,062 126,466 8,781 - - 4,879,983
MHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets - 489,013  1,069825 3,309,166 267,511 25070 370,968 5,531,553
A4 Other assets 57,540 5929 36842 10573 258 - 686788 851,230

1405621 3918344 3,489,508 5173962 7,273,100 11,566,561 1,072,247 33,899,343

& Liabilities
BIAE  BRFTR  Deposits and balances of banks,
A sgREE central banks and other financial

institutions 3,978 - - - - - - 3,978
REHR T8 #E  Curent, fixed, savings and

REMZR other deposits of customers 15419304 5,382,776 4,184,810 3,815,141 164,784 - - 28,966,815
BERRER Trading liabilities - - - - - - 9,326 9,326

EREBERAFE  Amounts due to immediate holding
REZNEATE company and fellow subsidiaries 309,218 - 122 13 - - - 309,363
AaE Other liabilities 212,426 47,520 81,968 71,983 - - 125211 539,068
15,944,926 5430296 4,266,910 3,887,097 164,784 - 134537 29,828,550
F(8E)/BEZE  Net (iability)asset gap (14,539,305) (1,511,952)  (777,402) 1,286,865 7,108,316 11,566,561 937,710 4,070,793
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23 B BEREE #) 23 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) RBESRAREE(E) (b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) EEREEREREAZSHEN (i) Maturity profile of the assets and liabilities based
B 1k 2 [ ek 2 PR 21 5 B B BR & on the remaining period at the reporting date to the
R (E) contractual maturity date (continued)
2016

1EANE  3EAME 1540
B3EARm  BIER BSER

Over Over QOver
AEE:  1EAA Tmonth  3months Tyear  SEBE
Repayable Within -~ butwithin -~ butwithin  but within Over &I ag
on demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years Syears  Undated Total
BE Assets
BERBEMBTAEZ . Cashand balances with banks,
BRFTREMER  central banks and other financial
BiETR institutions 93829 234818 - - - - 404 1,159,051
252k Trade bills 1417 2,501 7,095 674 - - - 11,687
BEEMBAE Trading assets - - - - - - 26,264 26,264
RFER Advances to customers 327,805 431,434 562,185 2,155,830 6,639,156 10,974,663 - 21,091,073
EHEBARATR  Amounts due from immediate
RENBAAE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 98,702 229,052 1,696,147 582,330 - - - 4,673,231
MHHELRERE Available-for-sale financial assets - 678,245 1,163,844 1,465,799 446,236 54,000 249858 4,057,982
A4 Other asses 61457 101,363 43,045 6,324 257 - 60878 87334

1413210 3744413 3472316 4210957  7,085649 11,028,663 937,404 31,892,612

8k Liabilities
B1AE  BRFTR  Deposits and balances of banks,
e RBEE central banks and other financial

institutions 2,115 - - - - - - 2,115
REAR EH HE  Curent, fixed, savings and
REMFER other deposits of customers 14214444 4131830 6338588 3002916 101,949 = - 21,789,727
BEEMRAR Trading liabilities - = = - - = 28,150 28,150
EfEBERAFE  Amounts due to immediate holding
REZNBATE company and fellow subsidiaries 29 38,338 - - - - = 38,634
AEE Other labilities 184,563 76,444 52,684 95,37 140 - 106674 515742
14401418 4246612 6391272 3,098,153 102,089 - 134824 28374368
F(8E)/BEZE  Net (iability)asset gap (12,988,208  (502,199) (2,918,956) 1,112,804 6,983,560 11,028,663 802,580 3,518,244
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(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise stated)
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23 Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk management (continued)

(ii) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
The cash flows payable by the Bank for the non-derivative
financial liabilities including interest payable that will be
settled by remaining contractual maturities at the reporting
date are presented in the following table. The amounts
disclosed are based on the contractual undiscounted cash
flows. Interest payable in respect of term non-derivative
financial liabilities is reported based on contractual interest
payment date.

2017
EARE  3fAME  1EME
B3EAR  B1FR {E5A
Over Over Over
KSR 1fER@  1month  3months 1 year SERE
Repayable Within ~ but within ~ but within  but within Over B ok
ondemand ~ 1month 3 months 1 year 5 years 5years  Undated Total
HiteRes Non-derivative financial
liabilities
BIAE  BRFTR  Deposits and balances of banks,
EfEREREER central banks and other financial
institutions 3,978 - - - - - - 3978
REAR EH - HER Current, fixed, savings and other
R deposits of customers 15,419,891 5395733 4,209,149 3,840,048 164,785 - - 29,029,606
ERNERARAZE  Amounts due to immediate holding
RZNEARGE company and fellow subsidiaries 309,218 3 132 13 = = - 309,397
Athife Other liabilities 118600 36176 66,059 62,445 - - 1511 501,731
15,944,927 5431943 4275340 3,902,506 164,785 - 125211 29,844,712
KA E Al Unrecognised loan commitments 1,963,900 35,03 315,018 547,237 1,261,164 639 - 4,123,001
PRERRAMEEE  Finandal uarantees and other
RENAIREE credit related contingent liabilities 4,708 18,613 48,665 126,769 25,666 2,000 - 26401
1,968,608 53,656 363,683 674,006 1,286,830 2,639 - 4380422
fiEIERERE Derivative cash flows
BERHE 2 TE Derivative financial instruments
SRIA settled on net basis - 301 233 1,620 4,621 784 - 7,559
BABEE 2 TE Derivative financial instruments
$RTA settled on a gross basis
= Vs - total outflow - 724483 707,460 579,089 241313 - - 2,252,345
—&RA - total inflow - (725803)  (710,696)  (579,089)  (241,313) - - (2,256,901)
ARA Net inflow - (1,320) (3,236) - - - - (4,556)
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23 B R ERE @) 23 Financial risk management (continued)

(b) REESRAKEE(E) (b) Liquidity risk management (continued)
(i) MBSV INHERIFRZBEERE (ii)) Undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(%) (continued)
2016

MBARL  3BEANL  1HENAE
[E3EAm  BIFA ESEA

Qver QOver Qver
AEEZ AR Tmonth  3months Tyear  SELE
Repayable Within -~ butwithin ~ butwithin  but within Over Bt g
on demand Tmonth 3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years Undated Total
HTELREE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
FIFZE  PREFTR  Deposits and balances of banks,
HtBERRER central banks and other financial
institutions 2,115 - - - - - - 2,115
ZRAR - T8 BER Curent, fixed, savings and
2 other deposits of customers 14214444 4142606 6,361,284 3,029,647 102,537 - - 27850518
ERNERARAZE  Amounts due to immediate holding
RZNEARSE company and fellow subsidiaries 296 38,356 - = - - = 38,652
EfAf Other liabilities 184563 67093 38874 85288 - - 106674 482492
14401418 424805 6,400,158 3,114,935 102,537 - 106,674 28,373,777
KT E oA Unrecognised loan commitments 1,897,003 552,314 217,270 208,001 322,311 29,400 - 3,226,389
PBERLEMEREE  Finandal quarantees and other
HANSREE credit related contingent liabilities 176 16,088 60,969 117,080 29,428 2,000 - 25,74
1,897,179 568,402 278,239 325,081 351,739 31,490 - 3,452,130
fIATRRLHE Derivative cash flows
BEREE 2 TE Derivative financial instruments
SRIA settled on net hasis - 330 485 2,447 5,068 - - 8,330
REBEE i1k Derivative financial instruments
SRTE settled on a gross basis
—faEy - total outflow - 664,680 247 836 801,784 448,283 - - 2,162,583
—fan - total inflow - (661,116)  (247.876)  (801,828)  (448,283) - - (2,159,103)
Bt/ (BA) Net outflowl(inflow) - 356 (40) (44) - - S 3480
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23 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management

Market risk is the risk arising from the movements in market
prices of on- and off-balance sheet positions in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates as well as equity and commodity prices
and the resulting change in the profit or loss or reserve of the
Bank.

The Bank is exposed to market risk on position taken or financial
instrument held or taken such as foreign exchange contracts,
interest rate contracts, fixed income and equity securities and
derivatives instruments.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the policies for
the management of market risks and trading authorities. The
ALMCO has been delegated the responsibility of controlling
and monitoring market risk including regular review of the risk
exposures and the risk management framework such as the
established limits and stop-losses. The limits are set by ALMCO
and reviewed on a periodic basis with reference to market
conditions, with any material changes requiring a review by the
Board of Directors. It is the Bank’s policy that no limit should be
exceeded.

(i) Interest rate risk management

The Bank’s interest rate positions arise from treasury and
commercial banking activities. Interest rate risk primarily
results from the timing differences in the repricing of
interest-bearing assets, liabilities and commitments. It also
relates to positions from non-interest bearing liabilities
including shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well
as from certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Interest rate
risk is managed by the Financial Management Department
(“FMD") within limits approved by the Board. The Bank also
uses interest rate swaps and other derivatives to manage
interest rate risk.

The Bank uses the Price Value of a Basis Point (“PVBP")
measurement quarterly to monitor and limit its interest rate
risk exposure. PVBP is a technique involving the calculation
of the change in present value of a financial instrument or a
portfolio of instruments due to a change of one basis point
in interest rates. It also provides a quick tool to evaluate the
impact on profit and loss due to a basis point movement in
interest rates.
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23 Financial risk management (continued)
(c) Market risk management (continued)

(0

Interest rate risk management (continued)

The Bank uses scenario analysis and stress test to assess the
Banking book interest rate risk the Bank would face under
adverse circumstances. Scenario analysis and stress test are
also devised to assess the impact on net interest income
arising from the optionality of demand and saving deposits,
the prepayment of mortgage loans and the prepayment of
debt securities with embedded options.

Interest rate sensitivity set out below is for risk management
reported to ALMCO only in simplified scenario, where
demand and saving deposits remain in the level as they
currently are and mortgage loans are serviced until their
original maturity. Actual changes in the Bank’s profit before
tax resulting from the change in interest rates may differ
from the result of the sensitivity analysis. The effect on
interest-bearing financial instruments and interest rate swaps
has been included in this calculation.

2017 2016
EF10E2, Increase in 10 basis points 3,149 3,616
TFE10E2, Decrease in 10 basis points (3,149) (3,616)

EEUENERBREIRZREEER
& BRERREEREREKRFPRE
TESERRAE - ABMENXE
PHEERBEEERESEE -

Structural interest rate risk arises primarily from the
deployment of non-interest bearing liabilities, including
shareholders’ funds and current accounts, as well as from
certain fixed rate loans and liabilities. Structural interest rate
risk is monitored by ALMCO.
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23 B R ERE #) 23 Financial risk management (continued)
() MERKEE(E) (c) Market risk management (continued)
(i) FREBSEE) (i) Interest rate risk management (continued)
TRETMNBREAGEEERAE The following tables indicate the expected next repricing
ZTEETNRF|EEETR date for the assets and liabilities at the reporting date.

2017
MWARL 180 E
B15R {B55

Over Over %8
3fAR 3 months 1 year SELLE Non-
Within  but within  but within Over interest &5
3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
BE Assets
Be RIFMRITRE - Cash and balances with banks,
FRETREMSE central banks and other
MR financial institutions 506,490 - - - 646,914 1,153,404
UL Trade bills 4,782 - = = = 4,782
EERREE Trading assets = = = = 14,491 14,491
REERREMER Advances to customers and
other accounts 20,295,803 499,177 644,222 27,500 166,248 21,632,950
FHEBZRARREZ  Amounts due from immediate
MEB L RZE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 4,675,136 123,270 - - 81,577 4,879,983
A HES AR Available-for-sale financial assets 1,674,385 3,256,626 204,504 25,070 370,968 5,531,553
HthEE Others - - - - 682,180 682,180
BEE Total assets 27,156,596 3,879,073 848,726 52,570 1,962,378 33,899,343
=L Liabilities
BITRE  PRETR Deposits and balances of banks,
H e BER central banks and other financial
institutions - - - - 3,978 3,978
ZEAK - TH BER  Current, fixed, savings and
EhfFa other deposits of customers 24,149,150 2,767,444 164,784 - 1,885,437 28,966,815
EEREE Trading liabilities - - - - 9,326 9,326
ENEBERAZREZ  Amounts due to immediate holding
WBRRZE company and fellow subsidiaries 306,923 - - - 2,440 309,363
At afE Others - - - - 539,068 539,068
BaR Total liabilities 24,456,073 2,767,444 164,784 - 2,440,249 29,828,550
FZHREEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 2,700,523 1,111,629 683,942 52570 (477,871) 4,070,793
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23 B BEREE #) 23 Financial risk management (continued)

() MERKEE(E) (c) Market risk management (continued)
(i) FREBSEE) (i) Interest rate risk management (continued)
2016

3fEAM L 1B E
B1ER B5ER

Over Over 28
3AA 3 months 1 year SER E Non-
Within ~ but within ~ but within Over interest =
3 months 1 year 5 years 5 years bearing Total
BE Assets
BeREMRITRE - Cash and balances with banks,
RRETREMER central banks and other financial
WA institutions 481,057 - - - 677,994 1,159,051
B5%K Trade bills 11,687 - - - - 11,687
BEERBAE Trading assets = = = = 26,264 26,264
REEZREMRE Advances to customers and
other accounts 19,541,217 500,295 928,006 122,782 216,476 21,308,776
FREBRRATR Amounts due from immediate
RZNBARFE holding company and fellow
subsidiaries 4,016,200 561,958 - - 95,073 4,673,231
AHEESREBE Available-for-sale financial assets 2,035,133 1,465,799 307,192 = 249,858 4,057,982
Bt EE Others - - - - 655,621 655,621
esE Total assets 26085204 2508052 1235198 122,782 1,921,286 31,892,612
8% Liabilities
RORE  PRBETR Deposits and balances of banks,
H S RiETx central banks and other financial
institutions - - - - 2,115 2,115
REAR FH #ER  Current, fixed, savings and
HEiER other deposits of customers 22,652,817 3,002,916 101,949 - 2,032,045 27,789,727
EERRER Trading liabilities - - - - 28,150 28,150
ERNEBERAER Amounts due to immediate holding
RZHBAFZE company and fellow subsidiaries 38,320 = = = 314 38,634
LR Others - - - - 515,742 515,742
2af Total liabilities 22,691,137 3,002,916 101,949 - 2578366 28,374,368
FEGREEE Interest rate sensitivity gap 3,394,157 (474,864) 1,133,249 122,782 (657,080) 3,518,244
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23 B R ERE #) 23 Financial risk management (continued)
() MERKEE(E) (c) Market risk management (continued)
(i) FREBSEE) (i) Interest rate risk management (continued)
TREARKNEE ZEBEAE : The following table indicates the effective interest rates for
the year:
2017 2016
FEEFHMERTTRIEE - PREETT  Placement with banks, central banks and
2 EoAth & R 8 other financial institutions 1.22% 1.09%
BE5EBEREFPER Trade bills and advances to customers 2.90% 3.01%
TREE Financial assets 1.40% 1.81%
RITRIZE ~ PRIFITREAM Deposits and balances of banks, central
S REIBTER banks and other financial institutions 0.49% 0.63%
BEER Deposits from customers 0.58% 0.71%
(i) EWABER (ii) Currency risk management
RITHINERBIREIINEEE « 7 The Bank’s foreign exchange positions arise from foreign
FIRITER - IBINERAREL exchange dealing, commercial banking operations. All
EFERT AU EHEE - foreign exchange positions are managed by the Treasury

Department within limits approved by the Board of Directors.

HRARITABMEE KB BIER The directors do not consider the Bank to have significant
PItk - A RETEE  maE=1& foreign currency risk as the majority of the Bank’s assets and
B AREESTRAART liabilities are denominated in Macau patacas, Hong Kong
GFHEEREERER - LT ARRE dollars and United States dollars, which are pegged to each
Bz @k : other. The exposure at the reporting date was as follows:
2017
B B s Hity &%
MOP HKD usbD Others Total
BEE Total assets 38.1% 56.5% 1.2% 4.2% 100%
HEE Total liabilities 39.1% 52.3% 4.2% 4.4% 100%
ik Net position (1.0)% 4.2% (3.0)% (0.2)% -
2016
SHLPT s ks =TT HAth a%
MOP HKD usbD Others Total
BEE Total assets 38.3% 51.9% 4.3% 5.5% 100%
FEy=Li Total liabilities 38.4% 49.8% 5.9% 5.9% 100%
FEE Net position (0.1)% 2.1% (1.6)% (0.4)% =
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23 Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Operational risk management

(e)

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events.

The Bank’s risk management framework is established to control
risks at both corporate and departmental levels. The underlying
management principle is built upon a longstanding culture of
high integrity and risk awareness fostered by senior executives of
the Bank.

The framework consists of governing policies with control
measures to ascertain absolute compliance by all operating units.
These measures are directed, controlled and held to account
by operational management committees chaired by senior
executives. Regular reviews are performed by the committees
to ensure proper functioning of internal controls and to identify
improvement opportunities.

Furthermore, independent reviews are conducted by the Bank's
Internal Audit Department to measure the effectiveness of the
Bank’s system of internal controls. This department reports to the
Supervisory Council to ensure the framework is managed with
high standards.

Capital management

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to support
the development of the Bank’s business and to meet the statutory
capital adequacy ratio. In addition to meeting the AMCM
requirements and the HKMA requirements on group basis for its
immediate holding company, the Bank's primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Bank’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and
by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Bank actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might otherwise be possible with greater gearing
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions. The amount of minimum
capital requirements held for credit, market and operational risks
is calculated in accordance with the Basel Il requirements under
AMCM and HKMA regulations.
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23 Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Capital management (continued)

Capital is allocated to the various activities of the Bank depending
on the risk taken by each business division. The Bank is subject
to the capital requirements of the AMCM and the HKMA for
their regulatory supervision purposes. The Bank has complied
with all externally imposed capital requirements throughout the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 and are well above the
minimum required ratio set by the AMCM and HKMA.

24 Fair values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

Financial instruments measured at fair value on an ongoing basis
include trading assets and liabilities and financial instruments
classified as available-for-sale.

Fair value estimates are generally subjective in nature, and are
made as of a specific point in time based on the characteristics
of the financial instruments and relevant market information. The
Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements:

(i) Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for
an identical instrument.

(ii) Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices). This category includes instruments
valued using: quoted market prices in active markets for similar
instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in
markets that are considered less than active; or other valuation
techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data.

(iii) Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs). This category
includes all instruments where the valuation technique
includes inputs not based on observable market data and the
unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the instrument’s
valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments where significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect
differences between the instruments.
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EREEFHHENKMGE BB DARE
EAFEENBETEERR - AIBENT
EREABBISEST BFERETSM
o USEEeRTSHEEEHR—REBER
MR EmHIREL -

ERBRERNTA  ATUKAERME
BANKLEERBIESAFEEFENE
o ZEMEEA-—RAEEXACHERL
HEER - MEFNBOREHEE IR
MISEBREFE -

RNHEEXFIREHIER - ZIERE EHER
ATEBELHBYNAR AR EDBEKE
EESRE - Al BEATEENRRE
EEREMBEIRR - MG ERAEIRER
BNERF @ Y EEERELREFNTE I8
B TR -

24 Fair values (continued)

Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

Fair values of financial instruments that are traded in active markets
are based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all
other financial instruments that are not traded in the active markets,
the Bank determines fair values using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques include net present value of expected future cash flows
and discounted cash flow models based on “no-arbitrage” principles,
standard option pricing models across the industry for vanilla
derivative products. The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive
at a fair value determination that reflects the price of the financial
instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by
market participants acting at arm’s length.

The majority of valuation techniques employ only observable market
data. Hence, the reliability of the fair values measurement is high.
However, certain financial instruments are valued on the basis of one
or more significant market inputs that are not observable. The fair
value derived is more judgemental. “Not observable” does not mean
there is absolutely no market data available but there is little or no
current market data available from which to determine the level at
which an arm’s length transaction would likely occur. Examples of
observable inputs include foreign exchange spot and forward rates,
benchmark interest rate curves and volatility surfaces for commonly
traded option products. Examples of unobservable inputs include
volatility surfaces for less commonly traded option products and
correlations between market factors.

Availability of observable market prices and model inputs reduces the
need for management judgement and estimation and also reduces
the valuation uncertainty associated with determination of fair values.
The availability varies depending on the products and markets and is
prone to changes based on specific events and general conditions in
the financial markets.

For more complex instruments, the Bank uses the broker pricing
service, which adopts proprietary valuation models, as inputs to a
fair value measurement. These models usually are developed from
recognised valuation models across the industry with some or all of
the inputs into these models being unobservable in the market.

Fair values are subject to a control framework that aims to ensure
that they are either determined, or validated, by a function
independent of the risk-taker. To this end, ultimate responsibility
for the determination of fair values lies with FMD. FMD establishes
procedures governing valuation, and is responsible for ensuring that
these comply with all relevant accounting standards.
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24 A ¥ EE @) 24 Fair values (continued)
BRAFEEIEZEMIAE(E) Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
TREAFLEBEERLRSB TR 2D EHE The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value
SR BER AR BEIEZSRTIA - at the reporting date according to the level in the fair value hierarchy

into which they are categorised.

2017
Recurring fair value F15ER $254R E3Z4 &%
REMATEERTE measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
BEERREE Trading assets
- EEASTESRTIA — Positive fair values of derivative
ZIEAFER financial instruments held
for trading - 14,491 - 14,491
AHEEEREE Available-for-sale financial assets
— B RS — Treasury bills - 4,397,342 - 4,397,342
—HiE%ES - Other debt securities 490,635 272,608 - 763,243
—EmkRE — Listed equity securities = = - -
—JEEHRE - Unlisted equity securities - - 370,968 370,968
490,635 4,669,950 370,968 5,531,553
af Liabilities
BEERRAE Trading liabilities
-~ BERBTESRMTIE — Negative fair values of derivative
ZBATHEERE financial instruments held
for trading - 9,326 - 9,326
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24 Fair values (continued)
Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)

2016
Recurring fair value F1ER FIER EIER &5t
REMATEETE measurements Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BE Assets
EERGEE Trading assets
—EERSITESRTIA — Positive fair values of derivative
ZIEATEE financial instruments held
for trading - 26,264 - 26,264
AEEHECMEE Available-for-sale financial assets
—BES — Treasury bills - 2,883,211 = 2,883,211
—HihEBE S — Other debt securities 815,189 109,724 = 924,913
— EmlkE — Listed equity securities 35,281 9,303 = 44,584
—JEEmRE - Unlisted equity securities = = 205,274 205,274
850,470 3,002,238 205,274 4,057,982
& Liabilities
BEERRAE Trading liabilities
-~ BERSTESRMIE — Negative fair values of derivative
ZBATEEBE financial instruments held
for trading - 28,150 - 28,150

(i) SB1EREF2ER2ER
RAFEE ¢RIAEQATFEENS
TERME2ERzHAALBFELERE
B o R1T 2B AN E HIRE R 0
BATFEESSERZEELER -

(i) Transfers between Level 1 and 2
During the year, there were no transfers of financial instruments
between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The
Bank'’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.
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24 NEEBEE)

BAVEEFESRMIA(H)

(i) B3IZH>AFEE
E32H > NFEESHE
TRIITEATFEBEEIZHR, ATE
B HYES RS HER -

24 Fair values (continued)
Financial instruments carried at fair value (continued)
(ii) Level 3 fair values
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair values
The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning
balance to the ending balances for fair value measurements in
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

AHEESHEE-RE
Available for sale
financial assets — equity

2017 2016
BE Assets
1RA1B &% At 1 January 205,274 134,713
MREEBRKRERZ Changes in fair value recognised
NEEBEEE in the balance sheet 165,694 70,561
12 A31H &% At 31 December 370,968 205,274

FEIFEM N FEEERBES

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements:

ABEZETRTHERE
REEN Significant gE
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
A EHE IE AR ISR A R A T35 AT 40 40%ZE50%
Available-for-sale unlisted Market- comparable Discount for lack 40% to 50%
equity securities approach of marketability

IRITUATAERNHGRFE - RIBEMDE
BFE - DUEEBERGFIATHES
RIELTREEFESF 2 A FEEGRRZ
MERBERARE)  c RFEEHZEH
BREmSRBERARRERBEERD - R
20174128318 » EHEMEE &N
BN TR - R LR E TSR
M ST HI5% 45 & 15 AN SR A RITHV IR
& W) in & (B {7 )R FI15 18,548,400 7T
(2016%F : JRF9¥10,263,7007T) °

25 EEEZER AT RERZEZERAE

20174128318 » EERARTHNEE
R AR R RERIER AR D B AR E S M
BX SR EE K F RIT AR A Al A R AR I3
A MEBRITAER AR o BLEAR] IR
wRET IEARARNMISHRE
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The Bank has estimated the fair value of available-for-sale
unlisted equity securities using the lower of the price/earning
ratios and enterprise value to earning before interest, and taxes
ratio adjusted for lack of marketability discount. The fair value
measurement is negatively correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that with all
other variables held constant, a decrease/increase in discount of
lack of marketability by 5% would have increased/decreased the
Bank’s investment revaluation reserve by MOP18,548,400 (2016:
MOP10,263,700).

25 immediate holding and ultimate controlling
party
At 31 December 2017, the directors consider the immediate holding
and ultimate controlling party of the Bank to be OCBC Wing Hang
Bank Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong, and Oversea-
Chinese Banking Corporation Limited, which is incorporated in
Singapore respectively. These entities produce financial statements
available for public use.



AEBRZHMEBTHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(LBPIEF T2+ Bathes)h) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

A RREEBZ 2 HEERFEE  2AKAM®EAE  The following unaudited disclosures of financial information are prepared
REEREL B ENEERESIMER - to comply with the Guideline on the Disclosure of Financial Information
issued by the Monetary Authority of Macao.

QEEHAEE2EX%EHE (a)Capital adequacy ratio of top consolidated

group
&S
Group
2017 2016
W12 A318B 2 B4R 7 B L% Capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 17.2% 17.1%
e EBIIRBHNE SR EIERE637 The calculation of the regulatory capital and capital charges of the top
SRt (BATEH XA ER)IBAFTEE consolidated group are in accordance with the Monetary Authority
BERNERENR o of Singapore Notice to Banks No. 637 (Notice on Risk Based Capital
Adequacy Requirement) for Banks incorporated in Singapore.
(b)) EAREB AR5 (b)Components of own funds
2017 2016
EXBFES: Core capital:
B #E A Paid-up share capital 120,000 120,000
ETEES  REERBEEZ Legal, statutory and other reserves created
EHe MEMARD LA by appropriation of retained profits
PR 2 B & 304,200 304,200
BEaERTT Profits brought forward 2,319,054 1,956,466
REZERBER Current year eligible net profits 167,990 187,815
ErBHEaemeE Total core capital 2,911,244 2,568,481
HrEEES: Supplementary capital:
HIPESEH2HFHESD Reserves on revaluation of own premises 51,610 51,610
—REES General provision 218,168 213,696
mrEREeRe®E Total supplementary capital 269,778 265,306
#m=EE Deduction: = =
KHBIBEE EBAS BT Total own funds after deduction 3,181,022 2,833,787
MREERZEBEELESEHENEBRIED IR The calculation on the components and total amount of own funds
BB mEEBF012/935 4 18 A&t after deduction is in accordance with Notice No. 012/93-AMCM.
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Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information
(LBPIMETF Tl 2l » Batksk)

() EXZTRE
() EAKZHE

R12 A31BE AT B R

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

(c) Capital adequacy
(i) Capital adequacy ratio

2017 2016

Capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 15.86% 15.16%

BEARELERRRAMCHEERSE

011/201550BE R AIEHE -

(i) MEEREZERER

The calculation on the capital adequacy ratio is in accordance
with Notice No.011/2015-AMCM.

(ii) Market risk capital requirement

2017 2016

MZRAKRERZ EXK : The market risk capital requirements for
— = R — Interest rate risk - -
— iR #E A b - Equity position risk - _
— HINEE R B — Foreign exchange risk 5,091 3,325
— Ak — Commodity risk - -
HNHE T35 [ e 48 B8 Weighted market risk exposures 5,091 3,325

(dEERK (d)Credit risk
(i) RUBEIE2EFERDN (i) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to customers
2017

2B

BEFEXM
(ZEAULE) HEEM 18 Bl & BEREE
EFEN Overdue  (fARIEF) 5 Eh
k] loans and Impaired Individually  Collectively
Gross advances loans assessed assessed
loans and (over (individually impairment impairment
advances 3 months) determined) allowances  allowances
R Macau 20,392,650 15,297 11,789 6,761 7,435
B Hong Kong 455,867 - - - 166
B A, China 414,620 - - - 151
HAh Other 215,354 - - - 78
21,478,491 15,297 11,789 6,761 7,830

02 EEBEXTHRERBARDT . 2017FFH



(d)EERB =)

(i)

(ii)

BB BZEFERDN(E)

(d)Credit risk (continued)

(i) Geographical analysis of loans and advances to customers

(continued)
2016

iR

BPER
(ZEAMLE) HEER & R E BERE
BEEX Overdue (AREE) e fi 8 gt
B loans and Impaired Individually Collectively
Gross advances loans assessed assessed
loans and (over (individually impairment impairment
advances 3 months) determined) allowances allowances
BT Macau 19,480,892 9,824 10,233 3,575 7,229
Bk Hong Kong 964,048 34 34 90 357
HEl A3t China 414,734 - = = 153
Ht Other 242,894 - = = 91
21,102,568 9,858 10,267 3,665 7,830

VA 038 5 88 2 2 AT TH IR B SR A 2 FRFE
W EEFEBERBRRE - —KRM= -
EBEBER ERESYIFERARE
2 = EFREEEBERR

BB S B2 BREEBS DN

The above geographical analysis is classified by the location of
the borrowers after taking into account the transfer of risk. In
general, risk transfer applies when a loan is guaranteed by a party
situated in an area different from the counterparty.

(ii) Geographical analysis of debt securities

2017 2016
& B B2 ERIRE LR
Individually Individually
R E B assessed REE assessed
Carrying impairment Carrying impairment
amount allowances amount allowances
BB Hong Kong 154,603 - 539,315 =
HhIn AR Rest of Asia-Pacific 4,840,287 = 3,115,802 =
M Americas 81,728 - 75,568 =
At Other 83,967 - 77,439 -
5,160,585 - 3,808,124 -
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Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(LBPIMETF Tl 2l » Batksk) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)
(d)%ﬁlﬁtl’ﬁ(%) (d)Credit risk (continued)
(iii) BEREBZESHNENHA L BRI H &R (iii) Maturity analysis on certain assets and liabilities based on
HiRE o 2 @A EERERBEB WHIR the residual contractual maturity at the reporting date
DR
2017
18R 3f8A

NLE DEE  1ENE
3MEAR 188 B3R

Over Over Over
BE®%  1MEBR™  1month 3 months Tyear  3EMNE &30
Repayable Within  but within  but within  but within Over Indefinite ax
ondemand  1month 3 months 1year 3 years 3 years period Total
EE Assets
ZHZEREFER  Trade bills, loans and advances
to customers 241,009 506,076 455779 1,727,757 3,853,616 14,684,425 - 21,468,682
Be REHRITRETE Cash and balances with and
loans and advances to banks 1,013,510 139,894 - - - - - 1,153,404
BEMHETR/HRF  Securities issued by Macao SAR
SBEEREMZES  Government and/or AMCM - 375858 927,921 3,093,563 - - - 439738
BAERE Certificates of deposit held = = 61,335 52,539 = - - 113874
EfES Other securities - 113,155 80,569 163,063 139,669 152,912 370,968 1,020,336
af Liabilities
RORER Deposits and balances of banks
EfeRsREER and financial institutions 3,978 - - - = - - 3,078
NERERN Deposits from public sector
entities 1,056 2,060,000 1,047,695 - - - - 3,108,751
PRREABATZE  Deposits from holding and
associated companies 309,218 - 132 13 - - - 309,363
ERTREZERR Deposits from non-bank
customers 15,418,248 3,322,776 3,137,115 3,815,141 164,734 50 - 25,858,064
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(d)%ﬁﬁtl’fﬁ(fé} (d)Credit risk (continued)

(iii) BEREBZESHNENHA L BRI H &R (iii) Maturity analysis on certain assets and liabilities based
HRE S ZEBEEREFEE WHR on the residual contractual maturity at the reporting date
DR (E) (continued)

2016

18R 3f@A
MER BEE  1EME
AR 15R E3%R

QOver Over QOver
fBEZ AR 1month 3 months Tyear  3FNE |
Repayable Within  but within -~ but within ~ but within Over  Indefinite ke
ondemand ~ 1month 3 months 1 year 3 years 3 years period Total
EE Assets
ZHZEREFER  Trade bills, loans and advances
to customers 329222 433935 569,280 2,156,504 3,696,816 13,917,003 - 21,102,760
BeREWRITRETE Cash and balances with and
loans and advances to banks 923,829 234,818 - - - - 404 1,159,051
BEMHETR/HRF  Securities issued by Macao SAR
SBEEREMZES  Government and/or AMCM - 579851 1,035650 1,267,710 - - - 2,883211
RELRTE Certificates of deposit held = = = - 48404 - - 48404
EfES Other securities - 98394 128194 198,089 364,862 86,970 249,858 1,126,367
af Liabilities
BORER Deposits and balances of banks
ESRBRER and financial institutions 2115 - - - - . . 2115
NERERRN Deposits from public sector
entities 989 - 1,037,163 - - - - 1,038,152
PRREABATZE  Deposits from holding and
associated companies 296 38,338 - - - - = 38,634
ERTREZERR Deposits from non-bank
customers 14,213,455 4131830 5301425 3,002,916 101,712 237 - 26,751,575
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Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information
(LBPIMETF Tl 2l » Batksk)

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

(e) FMNEE =L Bex (e)Foreign exchange risk
2017
AR# HihEHs
B i B#  Chinese E Other ast
MoP HK$ Renminbi US$ currencies Total
FREATE Total net long positions - 329,806 2,459 4,123 2,085 338,473
FREAR AR Total net short positions 338,473 - = = - 338,473
2016
AR ¥ HEih &
SR P ke Chinese E7T Other A&t
MOP HK$  Renminbi US$ currencies Total
FRBETE Total net long positions - 49,864 1,872 = 1,442 53,178
RO R AR EE Total net short positions 36,907 - - 16,229 42 53,178
2017
AR#
pedd Chinese x7T 43
HK$ Renminbi uss$ Total
INEEE Spot assets 19,144,960 430,705 420,360 19,996,025
NEBE Spot liabilities 17,722,502 510,927 1,431,324 19,664,753
=EIE A Forward purchases 506,168 115,006 1,635,402 2,256,576
REAEH Forward sales 1,598,820 32,325 620,315 2,251,460
£,/ (%8)#%%  Net long/(short) positions 329,806 2,459 4,123 336,388
2016
AR ¥
it Chinese ESH &5t
HK$ Renminbi uss$ Total
NEEE Spot assets 16,547,834 714,078 1,363,450 18,625,362
RE&8E Spot liabilities 15,893,128 818,603 1,874,643 18,586,374
EEEA Forward purchases 723,302 108,118 1,327,682 2,159,102
EHEH Forward sales 1,328,144 1,721 832,718 2,162,583
&,/ (5%8)#%%  Net long/(short) positions 49,864 1,872 (16,229) 35,507
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(f) RBETER

(f) Liquidity risk

2017 2016
FRFHHRKE L& Average minimum weekly cash in hand 703,763 680,523
FRATEHBE S EH Average weekly cash in hand 999,714 941,927
FAFHEEREBEE Average month-end specified liquid assets 10,026,886 10,703,705
2017 2016
% %

FREYRERHEERA Average month-end ratio of specified liquid
EXERELE assets to total basic liabilities 35.4 36.3
—ERAEERBESLLE Average one-month liquidity ratio 42.8 45.4
=AAFHEREES L E Average three-months liquidity ratio 39.3 39.1
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Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information
(LBPIMETF Tl 2l » Batksk)

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

(g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard

(QEEEBR(RERAMERMER

BT E 2 BREERX)
EER/EN-B—tF+=A=+-8

format established by the AMCM)
BALANGO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2017

RPY M
MOP
BR%
WENRE
PROVISOES,
BEME AMORTIZACOES E BEERE

EE ACTIVO ACTIVO BRUTO MENOS - VALIAS ACTIVO LIQUIDO
Be CAIXA 474,920,183 474,920,183
AMCMTFFR DEPOSITOS NA AMCM 506,348,406 506,348,406
JE W ERIE VALORES A COBRAR 314,922,428 314,922,428
AR 7 HAb{s B DEPOSITOS A ORDEM NOUTRAS INSTITUICOES DE

R iVES CREDITO NO TERRITORIO 17,219,110 17,219,110
TSN 2 Btz AR DEPOSITOS A ORDEM NO EXTERIOR

& EER 88,554,553 88,554,553
% iR OURO E PRATA
Hitng & E OUTROS VALORES
€N CREDITO CONCEDIDO 21,359,284,253 4,294,100 21,354,990,153
TEARR(Z BRIEIR APLICACOES EM INSTITUICOES DE CREDITO NO

TERRITORIO 4,472,544,574 4,472,544,574

TEINIIE B 2 B R DEPOSITOS COM PRE-AVISO E A PRAZO NO

TEHfFR EXTERIOR 4,785,548,692 4,785,548,692
IRE - EHRRE ACCOES, OBRIGACOES E QUOTAS 905,080,209 - 905,080,209
AHESRE APLICACOES DE RECURSOS CONSIGNADOS
EBA DEVEDORES 552,063 552,063
Hnig & OUTRAS APLICACOES 113,874,805 113,874,805
BB E PARTICIPACOES FINANCEIRAS 62,969,526 62,969,526
TEE IMOVEIS 683,581,918 40,424,050 643,157,868
B EQUIPAMENTO 198,330,576 159,308,031 39,022,545
EEE CUSTOS PLURIENAIS
R & B DESPESAS DE INSTALACAO
RERTENE IMOBILIZACOES EM CURSO
HtnEE & E OUTROS VALORES IMOBILIZADOS
RED K 2 AR CONTAS INTERNAS E DE REGULARIZACAQ 78,626,904 78,626,904
ok TOTAIS 34,062,358,200 204,026,181 33,858,332,019
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(QEEEBR(RERAMEHER

RFTREZBREEN) @

EEEEXRR-ZE—tHE+=-A=+—H

(g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard

format established by the AMCM) (continued)

BALANCO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2017 (continued)

(#&)
B
MOP
NEE PR
= PASSIVO SUB-TOTAIS TOTAIS
EEGERN DEPOSITOS A ORDEM 15,051,422,936
BANTFR DEPOSITOS C/PRE-AVISO
T BIER DEPOSITOS A PRAZO 10,775,449,619
B TERER N DEPOSITOS DE SECTOR PUBLICO 3,108,750,905 28,935,623,460
AHfEAKEES RECURSOS DE INSTITUICOES DE CREDITO NO
TERRITORIO
HM B E S RECURSOS DE OUTRAS ENTIDADES LOCAIS
HNEELE TR EMPRESTIMOS EM MOEDAS EXTERNAS 312,943,272
BHER EMPRESTIMOS POR OBRIGACOES
FIHEREEA CREDORES POR RECURSOS CONSIGNADOS
BN ERER CHEQUES E ORDENS A PAGAR 70,702,930
BEA CREDORES 66,745,188
XIEEE EXIGIBILIDADES DIVERSAS 70,252,688 520,644,078
DS EEEER CONTAS INTERNAS E DE REGULARIZACAO 320,974,185
FERERERS PROVISOES PARA RISCOS DIVERSOS 10,296,840
[N CAPITAL 120,000,000
ETE RESERVA LEGAL 120,000,000
Ehd= RESERVA ESTATUTARIA 184,200,000
EhHE RESERVA DE REAVALIACAO 733,361,324
H At *OUTRAS RESERVAS 182,926,796  1,340,488,120
BFEFEER RESULTADOS TRANSITADOS DE EXERCICIOS
ANTERIORES 2,319,053,822
RELHELER RESULTADO DO EXERCICIO 411,251,514  2,730,305,336
e TOTAIS 33,858,332,019
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Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(LRPIRETITST - itk oh)

(PEEREXR(RERMEMEE
BREZBRERR) @)
AEABER-B—tE+-A=+—8
(#)

*

Miar - Hb B R 2RI 182,926,796
TR —RERERAS o BITHACRPIE
& 22N ) 4R HI 5F 2 B 15 SR A EH 1R
BEFREERE - BRBEEEEER
1% (518/93 — AMCMSR B4 ) FT R & A9
REKEH—RRBRERS - RITEE
H—EEERZEEKEERSERE
EEEZENCRE(EZREERIBRME
24,944,563 E RBELE (R 1E - 2L ER
SERBBENNBRTERIITA 1]
BeRMBREAENELENERS] -
WAEAR AR AT F B M I5 R AR e 2}
- U TR RS BERR S e 20X
EHEEN [FEEE | 2 HaRARE
ERINE

(Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

(g)Balance sheet (in accordance with standard
format established by the AMCM) (continued)
BALANGO ANUAL EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2017 (continued)

As Outras Reservas incluem uma reserva obrigatéria no
montante de 182,926,796 Patacas. Porque o Banco adopta as
Normas de Relato Financeiro de Macau na preparacao das suas
demonstracdes financeiras anuais, as perdas de imparidade com
base nas NRFM podem ser inferiores ao nivel minimo de provisoes
genéricas calculadas de acordo com o Aviso 18/93 da AMCM (o
nivel minimo). A referida reserva obrigatéria representa, pois, a
diferenca entre o nivel minimo e as perdas de imparidade nos
termos das NRFM (antes dos impostos diferidos de 24,944,563
Patacas). Este mesmo montante, inscrito na linha {Dotacdes
adicionais para provisdes conforme RJSF) da Conta de Lucros e
Perdas das contas resumidas, estd reconciliado entre o {Lucro
depois de impostos) e os {Resultados do ano) de acordo com
as regras da RJSF na Conta de exploracao das demonstracdes
financeiras auditadas anuais.

P
MoP
&8

BER

RERER

R U BR

AR

REB KRR

A

A ER

RRES
HEBA

HAb# SRR

100 EEAXTRITROGAERAE - 2017FFH

CONTAS EXTRAPATRIMONIAIS

VALORES RECEBIDOS EM DEPOSITO
VALORES RECEBIDOS PARA COBRANCA
VALORES RECEBIDOS EM CAUCAO
GARANTIAS E AVALES PRESTADOS
CREDITOS ABERTOS
ACEITES EM CIRCULACAO
VALORES DADOS EM CAUCAO
COMPRAS A PRAZO
VENDAS A PRAZO
OUTRAS CONTAS EXTRAPATRIMONIAIS

MONTANTE

8,367,159,403
17,135,461
36,925,893,349
179,771,076
46,650,280
73,966,834

2,256,900,576
2,252,344,987
2,582,854,575



(hEBEaxR(RERMERMEER A

(h)Profit and loss account (in accordance with

REZEEE) standard format established by the AMCM)
TE L FEELREHE DEMONSTRACAO DE RESULTADOS DO EXERCICIO DE 2017
EXERE CONTA DE EXPLORAGCAO
ke
MOP
Xl X}
=Pl Débito MONTANTE &7 Crédito MONTANTE
BEEBKA CUSTOS DE OPERACOES 164,898,500 EEFEB PROVEITOS DE 712,856,801
PASSIVAS OPERACOES ACTIVAS
AEEH CUSTOS COM PESSOAL SRITARIS W = PROVEITOS DE SERVICOS 117,072,557
BANCARIOS
EEK REMUNERACOES DOS 148,219 HAhiR1T PROVEITOS DE OUTRAS 44,581,010
EReHY ORGAOS DE GESTAO EFE e OPERACOES
E FISCALIZACAO BANCARIAS
BEMY REMUNERACOES DE 139,987,501 &FEH KB RENDIMENTOS DE 87,753,145
EMPREGADOS B Wz TITULOS DE CREDITO
E DE PARTICIPACOES
FINANCEIRAS
[ E 5% B @A ENCARGOS SOCIAIS 52,924,189 H{thR1TUE OUTROS PROVEITOS 34,295,707
BANCARIOS
HMAEEA OUTROS CUSTOS COM 1,469,740 JEIEEEFULES  PROVEITOS INORGANICOS
O PESSOAL
F=FEH ZHE FORNECIMENTOS DE 9,523,810
TERCEIROS
FE=HIRME 24T SERVICOS DE TERCEIROS 50,082,232
H iR A OUTROS CUSTOS 70,578,409
BANCARIOS
TIE IMPOSTOS 906,266
JEIEHEMKEM  CUSTOS INORGANICOS 876,550
ERR DOTACOES PARA 28,041,194
AMORTIZACOES
HRE 2B DOTACOES PARA 4,215,439
PROVISOES
= lbE LUCRO DA EXPLORACAO 472,907,171
e TOTAIS 996,559,220 #&%A TOTAIS 996,559,220
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AEBRCHMEBTHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

(L BPTEET T2 Bathrslh) (Expressed in thousands of Macau Patacas unless otherwise indicated)

(hEEXR(BERPLSAMEERA (h)Profit and loss account (in accordance with

REZIEERRN) (®) standard format established by the AMCM)
(continued)
BaETER CONTA DE LUCROS E PERDAS
ke
MOP
Xl k-]
&FH Débito MONTANTE &7 Crédito MONTANTE
SE$-EN PREJUIZO DE eV LUCRO DE EXPLORACAOQ 472,907,171
EXPLORACAO
BE Bk PERDAS RELATIVAS 7,600,235 [FF 2 FE LUCROS RELATIVOS 4,215,439
A EXERCICIOS A EXERCICIOS
ANTERIORES ANTERIORES
FERIE R PERDAS EXCEPCIONAIS R FHE LUCROS EXCEPCIONAIS
EEMRZ DOTACOES PARA 56,601,096 EAE ZFH PROVISOES UTILIZADAS 7,600,235
IR R IMPOSTOS SOBRE
LUCROS DO EXERCICIO
Rz BER DOTACOES ADICIONAIS 9,270,000 RIELRER DOTACOES REDUCAO
E R E IG5 PARA PROVISOES V5 1R ) R R PARA PROVISOES
MEAS CONFORME RJSF MEAS CONFORME RIJSF
BEMER(FEE)  RESULTADO DO 411,251,514
EXERCICIO (SE
POSITIVO)
4azE TOTAIS 484,722,845 /% TOTAIS 484,722,845
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AEBRCHMEBTHEE

Unaudited Disclosures of Financial Information

%S EEE &%
—g—t#+=pA=+-H

Inventario De Participacoes Financeiras

EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2017

R EBRE £ IREEE Bk
Tipo/Sector de actividade Nome Valor do balanco Valor percentual
(RFI%)
(MOP)
BRZBRD — AEBEIE 548
Accoes/Quotas por sector de
actividade
#]RIT 0 R R EMITEE e TRBRERAT] 38,374,907 12.00%
Bancos, seguros e outros servicos ~ Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung
Hang, S.A.R.L.
e = ABRRIROARAR 22,942,500 10.50%
Companhia de Seguros Luen Fung
Hang-Vida, S.A.
&5t TOTAIS 61,317,407

RIFRFERBREEHES L TRAGKGZAS
Quadro a publicar ao abrigo do artigo 75°. do R.J.S.F.
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List of Branches

1T
HEEST
FARE I
FBDIT
EAHEAT
BT

B BHS T
HEST
TR EAIT
HFOFEDT
HFEDT

BKEFREHD 1T

S R24155%

ATEE IEA35%D

& =S 855
EFNEZBK19-2158
51588 FK329C-F

B K 5 IE 22 2 #7136 3385%
=S E295AM T
WEEN\EEFEIER 1955
T 75-795%
FrOFEREERES28650M T
SMAERE309-3155%
=EICE S A NDEE
WFIER A 356-36657E
FEeXE

104 EEAXTHRITRGAERAE - 2017FFH

Main Branch

Ho Lan Un Branch
Hong Kai Si Branch
San Kiu Branch

Hak Sa Van Branch
Toi San Branch

Kou Tei Vu Kai Branch
lao Hon Branch

Ho Pin San Kai Branch
San Hau On Branch
Fai Chi Kei Branch

Flower City Branch

241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro

3D Avenida do Conselheiro Ferreira de Almeida

85 Avenida Horta e Costa

19-21 Estrada de Adolfo Loureiro

32C-F Estrada de Marginal do Hipodromo
338 Avenida de A.T. Barbosa

29A Rua Pedro Coutinho R/C

195 Rua Oito do Bairro lao Hon

75-79 Rua Almirante Sergio

286 Alameda Dr. Carlos D'Assumpcao R/C
Avenida do Conselheiro Borja Nos. 309-315,
Mayfair Garden Bloco 5D R/C

356-366, Rua de Evora, Edif. Lei Fung, Taipa



ERJ/KFRIT
OCBCWING HANG

oE B R WO S B 24198
Registered Office : 241 Avenida de Almeida Ribeiro, Macau
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